GLOBAL GOLD CORP

FORM 10-K/A

(Amended Annual Report)

Filed 02/19/10 for the Period Ending 12/31/08

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Fiscal Year

45 EAST PUTNAM AVENUE
SUITE 118

GREENWICH, CT 06830
203-422-2300

0000319671

GBGD

1040 - Gold And Silver Ores
12/31

http://pro.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2010, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.




U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K /A

Amendment No. 1
(Mark One)

[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 002-69494

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in Its @ngar

Delaware 13-03025550
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT 06830
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number (203) 422-2300
Securities registered under Section 12(b) of thehBrge Act: None
Securities registered under Section 12(g) of thehBrge Act: Common Stock

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act: Yes No_ X

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord) 5f the Exchange Act: Yes No_ X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantdB filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during
past 12 months (or for such shorter period thateléstrant was required to file such reports), @)chas been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes: X _ No:

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgedéfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 111 of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large acceleratkt fi“accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingropany” in Rule 12k2 of the Exchange Ac

Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelerated filer [ ]
Non-accelerated filer [ 1(Do not checlsihaller reporting company) &l reporting company [X]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yes No_ X

The aggregate market value of the voting stock hgldon-affiliates of the Company computed by refiee to the price at which the stock



was sold, or the average bid and asked pricesobf stock, as of June 30, 2008, was $5,958,635.

As of April 10, 2009 there were 39,187,023 shafdh@registrant's Common Stock outstanding.




DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant's Proxy Statement medgetd the Annual Meeting of Stockholders schedtelde held on or around June 19, 2009
are incorporated by reference into Part 11l (Itetfghrough 14) of this Report.

Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the Year Ended December 31, 2008

EXPLANATORY NOTE

Global Gold Corporation (the “Company” or “Globabl@”) is filing this Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-Kf{#he “Amendment”) to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaaledd December 31, 2008 (the “Original Filing”) tmend (i) Part | Item 1 of the
Original Filing to (a) reflect that the Companyais exploration stage company, (b) include a Cautiote to U.S. investors, (c) state that the
Company does not have reserves which meet theiarittGuide 7 of the SEC Industry Guides and (@dyvjle additional information with
respect to its properties, including maps, histarid title information and other related matterd @) Part IV of the Original Filing and the
Consolidated Financial Statements contained theoesubstitute an amended audit report in conjonatiith the cumulative columns being
labeled unaudited in the Consolidated StatemenBpefations and Comprehensive Loss and the CoasaticStatement of Cash Flows for
the periods covered in the Original Filing, and @ensolidated Statements of Changes in StockholBegrsty (Deficit) being labeled as
unaudited for years from inception through yearegshDecember 31, 2005. In addition, the Consol@i&iaancial Statements are amended to
include a reclassification between “additional paig¢apital” and “accumulated other comprehensiaime” for the year ended December
31, 2008 on the Consolidated Balance Sheets tommstent with the Consolidated Statements of Chsung Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
and revise “other comprehensive income’the Consolidated Statements of Operations amadp@shensive Loss and the Comprehensive
table of the Notes to the Consolidated Financiate®hents. In addition, the Notes to the Consdaidi&inancial Statements have been
amended to reflect the exploration status of them@any, changes in Significant Accounting Policidagis for Presentation”, "Acquisition
Exploration and Development Costs", "Depreciatiapletion and Amortization", "Comprehensive Incom®rinciples of Consolidation”
and "Agreements and Commitments") and disclosuissraspect to the Company's properties made ihIP&e do not consider the
aforementioned changes to the Consolidated FinlBtaéements to be material and therefore havéabeted the Consolidated Financial
Statements as "restated".




Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemens$

This Annual Report includes statements of our etgiemms, intentions plans and beliefs that contgtitéorwardiooking statements™ within tl
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 398 amended, Section 21E of the Securities Exehant of 1934, as amended and are
intended to come within the safe harbor protectimvided by those sections. These statements, vilmciive risks and uncertainties, relat
the discussion of business strategies of Globatl @airporation ("the Company" or "Global Gold") amar expectations concerning future
operations, margins, profitability, liquidity andpmital resources and to analyses and other infesm#tat are based on forecasts of future
results and estimates of amounts not yet deterf@ngfe have used words such as "may," "will," "ddgu’'expects,” "intends," "plans,"
"anticipates," "believes," "thinks," "estimatessee€ks," "expects," "predicts," "could," "projectgdtential” and other similar terms and
phrases, including references to assumptionsjsiréiport to identify forward-looking statementfieEe forward-looking statements are made
based on expectations and beliefs concerning fetveats affecting the Company and are subject tert@inties, risks and factors relating to
our operations and business environments, all aéiwére difficult to predict and many of which dreyond the Company's control, that cc
cause our actual results to differ materially frihhase matters expressed or implied by these fortemking statements. These risks and other
factors include those listed under "Risk Factors} alsewhere in this report. The following fact@song others, could cause our actual
results and performance to differ materially frdme tesults and performance projected in, or imphigthe forward-looking statements:

o the Company's history of losses and expectatidarther losses;
o the effect of poor operating results on the Camyp

o the Company's ability to expand its operationsdthimew and existing locations and the Companyilgyato develop and mine its curre
and new sites;

o the Company's ability to raise capital;

o the Company's ability to fully utilize and retaiew executives;

o the impact of litigation, including internatidreabitrations;

o the impact of federal, state, local or foreigmwernment regulations;

o the effect of competition in the mining industand

o0 economic and political conditions generally.

The Company assumes no obligation to publicly updatrevise these forward-looking statements fgrraason, or to update the reasons

actual results could differ materially from thosieipated in, or implied by, these forward-lookisigjitements, even if new information
becomes available in the future.

Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors

The United States Securities and Exchange Commigthie “SEC”)limits disclosure for U.S. reporting purposes toenal deposits thal
company can economically and legally extract ordpo®. We use terms such as “reserves,” “resolrtgsologic resources,” “proven,”
“probable,” “measured,” “indicated,” or “inferredyhich may not be consistent with the reserve dédimsé established by the SEC Indu
Guide 7. Laws of foreign countries including Arrmreeand Chile are not consistent with SEC Industuyd@ 7 regarding use of such ter
We are required to adhere to the mining laws a&ggiirements of the countries we operate in whictutgtes developing reserves as we
exploration and mining activities pursuant to lawshe countries where we operate and to be in tiange with license requirements.
acknowledge that due to the differences in lamthefcountries in which we operate and SEC InduStride 7, our mining activities are be
reported for informational and disclosure purpdsased on foreign country requirements but alsottt@SEC does not recognize any of
properties as having proven or probable resentebleshed under SEC Industry Guide 7. Under SEitistry Guide 7, we can only state
we are in the exploration stage and have foundis@mies in mineralization amongst our drillinguklts, even though we have fore
country approved reserves, resources, mining legrend sales of concentrate.

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
(1) GENERAL OVERVIEW

Global Gold is currently in the exploration statieés engaged in exploration for, and developmertt mining of, gold, silver, and other



minerals in Armenia, Canada and Chile. The Comgamyadquarters are located in Greenwich, Connéetimlits subsidiaries maintain
offices and staff in Yerevan, Armenia, and Santjagjoile. The Company was incorporated as Triad g3n€orporation in the State of
Delaware on February 21, 1980 and, as further testbelow, conducted other business prior to JgnLial 995. During 1995, the Company
changed its name from Triad Energy Corporation lttb& Gold Corporation to pursue certain gold aogper mining rights in the former
Soviet Republics of Armenia and Georgia. The Comgeas not established proven and probable resdrvascordance with SEC Industry
Guide 7, at any of its properties. The Compartgsksis publicly traded. The Company employs apjmately 100 people globally on a year
round basis and an additional 200 people on a sahbasis.

Although the Company competes with mui&itional mining companies which have substantigidbater resources and numbers of employ
the Company’s knowledge of, and partners in, tkasof its operations provide it with significadvantages. The Company’s long term
presence in Armenia and the expertise and knowletlie joint venture partner in Chile allow it tompete with companies with greater
resources.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is primarily on #hloration, development and production of golthatTukhmanuk property in the North
Central Armenian Belt. The Company is also focusethe exploration and development of the Marjash @an expanded Marjan North
property. In addition, the Company is exploringl @eveloping other sites in Armenia, including @@mpany’s Getik property. The
Company also holds royalty and participation rightsther locations in the country through affiiatand subsidiaries.




In Chile, the Company’ focus is primarily on the exploration, developtamnd production of gold at the Madre de Dios andrB propertie
in south central Chile, near Valdivia. The Comp@nglso engaged in identifying exploration anddartion opportunities at other locatic
in Chile.

In Canada, the Company has engaged in uraniumratiglo activities in the provinces of Newfoundleat Labrador, but is phasing out this
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produagijoortunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@f@ and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsidigy in the State of Delaware.
These companies were formed to be equal joint csvoea Chilean limited liability company, Mineradbial Chile Limitada ("Minera
Global"), formed as of May 6, 2003, for the purpo$eonducting operations in Chile.

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global Gatdenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global
Gold Mining LLC ("Global Gold Mining"), as a whollgwned subsidiary, both in the State of Delawateb@& Gold Mining was qualified to
do business as a branch operation in Armenia am$ @ssets, royalty and participation interestsyedsas shares of operating companies in
Armenia.

On December 21, 2003, Global Gold Mining acquiré@% of the Armenian limited liability company SHAL.C (renamed Global Gold
Hankavan, LLC ("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), whialdhthe license to the Hankavan and Marjan progerti Armenia.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining acquired 5@fthe Armenian limited liability company Mego-GoldLC, which is the licensee for
the Tukhmanuk mining property and seven surroundimoration sites. On August 2, 2006, Global Qdiding acquired the remaining
49% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC, leaving Global GdMiining as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLC.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaagaction to acquire 80% of the Armenian compaitlgeléa Investments, CISC
(renamed "Getik Mining Company, LLC") and its apgnoately 27 square kilometer Getik gold/uraniumlexation license area in the
northeast Geghargunik province of Armenia. As @iy\0, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the rerimar20% interest in Getik Mining
Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mining as the @wif 100% of Getik Mining Company, LLC.

On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Go#hium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium™), as a whollyvaed subsidiary, in the State of
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium exjdoraictivities in Canada. Global Gold Uranium waslfied to do business in the
Canadian Provinces of Newfoundland and Labrador.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢nvégh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios anddPpeperties in south central Chile, near Valdivihe name of the joint venture comp:

is Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia S.C.M. (tbhal Gold Valdivia”).

The Company is a reporting company and is therefobgect to the requirements of the Securitiesixahange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and accordingly files its Annuagort on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 1@®&finitive Proxy Statements,
Current Reports on Form 8-K, and other informatiathh the Securities and Exchange Commission (tHeC'$. The public may read and

copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEQIblic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NW, WasbimddC 20549. Please call the SEC
at (800) SEC-0330 for further information on thébRuReference Room. As an electronic filer, thev@any's public filings are maintained
on the SEC's Internet site that contains reportsgypand information statements, and other inforamategarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of thabsite is http://www.sec.gov.

The Company'’s filings are also accessible freehafge through the Company's Internet site afteCiipany has electronically filed such
material with, or furnished it to, the SEC. Thelabs of that website is http:// www.globalgoldcogm. However, such reports may not be
accessible through the Company's website as prgraptihey are accessible on the SEC's website.

(2) INITIAL ARMENIAN MINING PROJECT
In 1996, the Company acquired rights under a Jéemture Agreement with the Ministry of IndustryAfmenia and Armgold, S.E., the

Armenian state enterprise, formed to provide chpitd multistage financing of the Armenian goldustty, which rights were finalized under
the Second Armenian Gold Recovery Company JointiferAgreement, dated as of September 30, 1997.



As of January 31, 1997, the Company and Global Gohdenia Limited, the Company's then wholly-ownealy@an Islands subsidiary
("GGA Cayman"), reached an initial agreement wittsttDynasty Mines, Ltd., whose name changed tdig&t&old Ltd. on July 5, 2002




("Sterlite"), a Canadian public company and whdseas are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchangeresgibect to the initial Armenian
project. The Company, GGA Cayman and Sterlite edtérto a definitive agreement, dated May 13, 1989Wer such agreement, Sterlite
acquired all of the stock of GGA Cayman, subjeatddain conditions, by advancing funds in stagesessary for the implementation of the
tailings reprocessing project and the preparatfa@ngineering and business plan materials for thraekian Joint Venture and delivering
4,000,000 shares of First Dynasty (later Sterfitejnmon Stock to the Company (the "FDM Agreemenitte parties thereafter amended the
FDM Agreement on July 24, 1998. Pursuant to the F&veement, the Company retains the right untilédeler 31, 2009 to elect to
participate at a level of up to 20% with Sterlite any of its affiliates or successors in intergsfny exploration project undertaken by thei
Armenia. As of December 31, 2004, the Company didown any shares of Sterlite common stock. In 208@g@lanta Resources plc
("Vedanta") acquired control of Sterlite throughilmv@étar International Limited ("TSI"), an indirestholly-owned subsidiary of Vedanta. In
September 2007, Vedanta (and Sterlite) announ@dhy had closed a stock sale transaction withP@eMining Ltd., which made
GeoProMining Ltd. and its affiliates the succesdorthe 20% obligation.

(3) ARMENIA PROPERTIES
The Company operates an office in Yerevan, Armaitiare it manages its exploration and mining adéigias well as reviews potential

acquisitions. A map showing the location of thegenties in Armenia (below) and other informationtba properties are located on the
Company's website.
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Hankavan
Hankavan is located in central Armenia in the K&tpyovince between Vanadzor and Meghradzor north@Marmarik River.

GGH acquired Hankavan licenses in December of 20@Righ the acquisition of the Armenian companyASH_C (since renamed Global
Gold Hankavan, LLC ("GGH")), and has been condgrtirdrilling program along with other exploratioetigities to confirm the historical
feasibility work done on the copper, molybdenum golil mineralization in the Soviet era. GGH alspaxded its exploration activities to
other, smaller license areas in and around Hankakaaddition, GGH is conducting exploration adnming to determine the feasibility of a
quick start mining operation for copper oxide iisthrea. These activities have not been activetgyed pending performance of a
conditional, confidential settlement agreement \ilith Armenian Government entered as of Februarg@Gg.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pradiags”, below.



Marjan

The Marjan mining property is located in Southwest&rmenia, along the Nakichevan border in the Sypnovince. The property is
accessible by car or trucks through existing pavetidirt roads. The property comprises two patsjan Central, where early drilling and
underground exploration has been carried out aradjavl North (Mazmazak), which is situated somekingnorth of Marjan Central. The
whole property is roughly rectangular in shape,Kr2wide by 6.1 km long. The approximate geograoiordinates of the property are, 39°
24’ 00" Latitude and 45° 51’ 00" Longitude. Eldctpower is proximate to the property. There soal river which passes in the immediate
proximity to the property. The Company does natehany facilities or material equipment at the gityp. The Company has only done
exploration work at the property and has not depedibany significant surface or underground worlangnfrastructure with the exception of
approximately 60 kilometers of roads built. Allugment needed is brought to the site on an asedkleasis from the Company’s other
properties or from contractors.




The area of the Marjan Property is underlain byti&gr volcanic rocks, which have been intruded bytim-northwest trending dioritic
dykes. The bulk of the gold mineralization is @néed within polymetallic sulphide veins, which aesociated with northerthwest trendin
hydrothermal alteration zones. These alteratioreg@re readily observed on the surface as rugfsetozones on outcrops. Two types of
gold mineralization have been observed. Thesga@remineralization associated with sulphide véimgolcanic rocks, and gold
mineralization adjacent to dioritic dykes, whiclrirde the volcanic rocks.

The Company does not currently have establishedves at the Marjan Property except as reportatidRepublic of Armenia State
Committee on Reserves (“GKZ") and is focusing oplesation work based on Armenian historical GKZats (please refer to the
“Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 df tleport). The Company has done geological mapmround geophysical surveys,
trenching and diamond drill testing at Marjan andtmues its exploration work there based on thme\ian historical GKZ records in
conjunction with the exploration work and resultsd so far. Additional exploration work will nealbe funded with additional funds raised
through joint ventures, debt, equity or a comborathereof.

The Marjan property is a lode deposit which willrh@ed using underground adits. The Company has\ational special mining license
#HA-L-14/526 which covers surface rights for minjmgploration and related purposes for gold andfeommus metals (please refer to the
“Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 dd$ tleport). The license area is defined by thivvahg coordinates:

1. X =4365000 3. X =4363770 5. X = 4360000

Y = 8570000 Y = 8574530 Y = 8572700
2. X =4366800 4. X =4360400

Y = 8572000 Y =8575250

In 2008, GGH engaged in mapping, sampling, drifllgsis and other exploration work at Marjan aneégpanded Marjan North area. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company has not generajecte@nue from sales of any concentrate or otheeralized material at the

property. As of December 31, 2008, the Companyspast approximately $3,400,000 on mining and engpian activities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

This property was previously explored during thei8pbera. SHA, LLC applied for an original licenfsem the Government. Global Gold
Mining acquired 100% of SHA, LLC, the Armenian caany which held the license to the property in Denen2003. On April 28, 2008, t
Company was issued a twenty-five year “special ngdicense” for the Marjan property effective A@2R, 2008 and expiring April 22, 2033
which expands the prior license term and substinir@reases the license area from approximatglpQ@ acres to approximately 4,800
acres. The Company is required to pay annual govental fees of approximately $55,000. The Compsamyso required to perform work
the property as submitted and approved in its ngipian which includes mining of 150,000 tonnes @femalized rock between April 22,
2008 and April 21, 2008, and to have additionatress approved under Armenian Law in order to naairthe licenses in good standing
(please refer to the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Ihees on page 3 of this report).

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.
Tukhmanuk

The Tukhmanuk property is adjacent to the Hankaraperty in central Armenia, between the Aragatsotd Kotayk provinces. The

property includes seven surrounding exploratiosssits well as other assets.. The property isddagiproximately 60 km (72 km by road)
north of Yerevan, close to the Town of Aparan amohe 75 km (by road) from the Alaverdi copper smétienorthern Armenia. Access to

the Tukhmanuk Property is by paved road (aboutrb#rkm Yerevan to the turn-off of the road northAgfaran and about 15 km by dirt road
from Aparan to Melikkyugh, the nearby village t@thite. Local infrastructure is available at tie and at nearby towns. Infrastructure at the
site includes electrical power, cell phone netwamkid road building equipment. Logistical supporttarms of power, is available at the
Tukhmanuk site, and at Melikkyugh, which is linkegla 10 Kv line to the Armenian Power grid. Waseavailable from natural sources
within the property, independent of community segtcIn addition to the central property, the asijon included a 200,000 tonne per year
capacity plant. The Company has maintained thetglarushers, mills, and gravitation circuits argood condition while also adding a
hydro cyclone, flotation cells, and building a nwings dam. Other major assets at the propediude several bulldozers, excavators and a
track trencher which are all in good condition.eTgroperty also includes some temporary housing uand hangers which are used to store
core samples, a gold room, and a new ISO certifibdratory.

The area of the Tukhmanuk Property is underlaid@m@nantly by Jurassic volcanic rocks and Cretaséoiuusive rocks. The volcanic roc
comprise andesites and dacites, and the intruslesrare dominantly granitic with minor graniticeiss and amphibolites. Parts of the area
are also covered by Tertiary volcanic rocks inahgdbbsidian and perlites. Gold mineralizationiia Tukhmanuk area is hosted by both
volcanic and intrusive rocks.



The Company does not currently have establishedves at the Tukhamanuk Property although is hasi#ted its reserve report to the
Republic of Armenia State Committee on Reserve&ZG in March 2009 as noted below. The Companfousing on exploration work
based on Armenian historical GKZ records. The Camyphas done geological mapping, ground geophysigakys, trenching and diamond
drill testing at Tukhmanuk and continues its exatimm work there based on the Armenian historidérGecords in conjunction with the
exploration work and results done so far (pleas te the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” agp 3 of this report). Additional
exploration work will need to be funded with addiital funds raised through joint ventures, debtjtgeur a combination thereof.




The Tukhmanuk property is a lode deposit whicheisip mined using an open pit method. The Compasydme National exploration licer
#15, as extended, covering approximately 10,91&safor sub-surface exploitation of gold. The Compalso has one National mining
license #HA-L-14/356 which covers the central sactf the property and is approximately 446 acoesrfining gold and silver. The
Company is required to pay annual governmental déepproximately $32,000. The Company is alsaireg to spend annually
approximately $1,200,000 on exploration work anding annually 80,000 tonnes of mineralized rocthatproperty as submitted and
approved in its mining plan in order to maintaie titenses in good standing (please refer to treutiGnary Note to U.S. Investoreh page
of this report). The exploration license areadfred by the following coordinates:

Global Gold Corporation — Tukhmanuk Property, Armenia

Corner Easting (X) Northing (Y)
1 4501580 8444500
2 4504350 8447800
3 4502700 8450000
4 4504050 8451850
5 4503250 8452250
6 4503300 8453950
7 4502500 8453900
8 4502400 8450850
9 4501950 8451350
10 4501680 8452550
11 4500525 8453380
12 4499730 8453950
13 4499800 8451600
14 4500650 8451550
15 4500700 8450600
16 4500000 8449870
17 4498550 8450700
18 4497000 8450650
19 4497000 8448370
20 4497900 8448700
21 4498200 8447550
22 4497000 8446100
23 4497000 8444400
24 4499000 8444400
25 4491750 8445650

In 2008, Global Gold Mining upgraded the plant &atul installed a new gold room, recommenced miring production of concentrate, and
continued its analysis of the prior years drillués.  Also, the Company compiled its reserve repod submitted it to the state committee on
reserves of Armenia in March 2009 (please reféenéd‘Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on pagd g report). The Company has
generated minimal sales from gold and silver cotraéafrom the property as of December 31, 2008esSwere approximately $6,000 in
2006, $10,400 in 2007 and nothing in 2008. Thessal 2006 were for 41.11 tonnes of gold and sitegrcentrate with content of
approximately 33 g/t gold and 290 g/t silver. Hades in 2007 were for 47.23 tones of gold anesidoncentrate with content of
approximately 21 g/t gold and 117 g/t silver. Tmmpany has mined mineralized rock of approximab@00 tonnes in 2006 with content
of approximately 1.27 g/t gold and 6.37 g/t silves,mining in 2007, and approximately 82,000 tonne&008 with content of approximately
1.85 g/t gold and 5.21 g/t silver. As of DecemBgy 2008, the Company has spent approximately $70R0 on mining and exploration
activities at this property, excluding acquisit@md capital costs.

On May 22, 2008, the government of Armenia issutspacial exploration licenseb the Company for the Tukhmanuk mining propeftihe
license is effective May 13, 2008 and expires ory N&, 2010 with the option of being extended foraaditional two years. The spet
exploration license does not affect the Companyanty-five year license over the smaller “Centract®n” of the property. The spec
exploration license expands the prior license tanmh increases the license area by approximatelya6tss, from approximately 10,297 a
to approximately 10,915 acres.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatshare purchase agreement to acquire the Armbmiged liability company Mego-
Gold, LLC which acquired the license from the gowveent for the Tukhmanuk mining property and surtbog exploration sites as well as
the owner of the related processing plant andradBsets. On August 2, 2006, Global Gold Minixgreised its option to acquire the
remaining forty-nine percent (49%) of Mego-Gold,&Lin exchange for one million dollars ($1,000,080 five hundred thousand



(500,000) restricted shares of the Company's constamk with a contingency allowing the sellersed back the 500,000 shares on or be
September 15, 2007 for a payment of $1 milliom& €ompany's stock is not traded at or above tvlardand fifty cents ($2.50) at any time
between July 1, 2007 and August 31, 2007. On Sdmed?, 2006, Global Gold Mining loaned two hunditealisand dollars ($200,000) to
Karapet Khachatryan ("Maker"), one of the selldrMego-Gold LLC, a citizen of the Republic of Arrianas evidenced by a convertible
promissory note payable (“Note”) to Global Gold ltig, with interest in arrears on the unpaid priatipalance at an annual rate equal to ten
percent (10%). At any time following September 2806, the Company, at its sole option, had the tiglsonvert all of Maker's debt from t
date of the Note to the date of conversion intageshaf common stock of the Company at the convergiae of $1.50 per share with all of
such shares as security for all obligations. Mghedged two hundred fifty five thousand (255,0083res of the Company's common stock as
security for his obligations thereunder. On Septenils, 2007, the contingency period expired withexdrcise, extension or amendment. The
Company has accounted for this by booking the 3ghares, at the fair market value of $1,000,006,Additional Paid-In Capital. The
Company also booked the $200,000 secured loarNiote Receivable and accrued interest, from incapfdNote as per the terms of the

Note above, into Additional PeIn Capital. On February 12, 2008 the Company&sed its option and converted the Note and accrued
interest into one hundred fifty two thousand selwendred seventy-eight (152,778) shares, which tene cancelled.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.




Getik

The Getik property is located in the northeast Geghinik province of Armenia north-east of Lake Sesad approximately 110 km north-
east of Yerevan. The property is accessible byc#ucks through existing paved and dirt roa@ss and electric power are available at the
property. The property is located in the Alavef@ipan metallogenic zone on the edge of the Seviamesmone in an area characterized by
volcanogenic sedimentary rocks of Jurassic andiage. A series of granitoid intrusives varyiranf ganodiorite to rhyolite composition
have been identified in the area associated widgenal scale east-west trending fault and losaedéde north-south trending faults. The
Company does not have any facilities or materiaigent at the property. The Company has only doipdoration work at the property and
has not developed any significant surface or urrdergd working or infrastructure with the exceptmmapproximately 60 kilometers of roads
built. All equipment needed is brought to the sitean as needed basis from the Company’s othpegies or from contractors.

The Company does not currently have establishextves at the Getik Property and is focusing onangion work based on Armenian
historical GKZ records. The Company has done ggcéd mapping, ground geophysical surveys, trerghind diamond drill testing at Getik
and continues its exploration work there basechenArmenian historical GKZ records in conjunctioithithe exploration work and results
done so far (please refer to the “Cautionary Notd.S. Investors” on page 3 of this report). Agtatitl exploration work will need to be
funded with additional funds raised through joiehtures, debt, equity or a combination thereof.

The Getik property is a lode deposit which willtéed using an open pit. The Company has two Natiexploration licenses #85 which
covers sub-surface exploitation of precious metatee Amrots manifestation and #86 which covetssurface exploitation of non-ferrous
metals in the Aygut manifestation, as further diésct below. The Company is required to pay angoaernmental fees of $1,000. The
Company is also required to spend annually apprateip $1,000,000 on exploration work in order tamtein the licenses in good
standing. The exploration license area is deflmethe following coordinates for the Amrots goldmifastation and Aygut copper
manifestation:

Amrots manifestation: 1. X = 4507000 5. X = 45b6@3 9. X =4504000
Y = 8517000 Y = 8521350 Y = 8519650
2. X = 4507000 . X = 4504450 10. X = 4504350
Y = 8525000 Y = 8520850 Y = 8519000
3. X = 4503000 . X = 4504350 11. X = 4504750
Y = 8525000 Y = 8520350 Y = 8517000
4, X = 4503000 . X =4504125
Y = 8522000 Y = 8520250
Aygut manifestation: 1. X = 4507000 3. X =45807
Y = 8516000 Y = 8517000
2. X = 4507000 4, X =4504950
Y = 8517000 Y = 8516000

In 2008, Getik Mining Company, LLC engaged in maggpisampling, drill analysis and other exploratiaork at the Getik property. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company has not generajecte@nue from sales of any concentrate or othaeeralized material at the
property. As of December 31, 2008, the Companyspast approximately $600,000 on mining and explamaactivities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

On December 10, 2008, the government of Armenizeids new special exploration license expiring Dewer 10, 2013. The Company will
conduct further exploration activities during tpisriod.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaslpurchase agreement, dated as of January 23, R0 Athelea Investments, CIJSC
("Al") and Messrs. Simon Cleghorn, Sergio DiGiovyakimen Ghazarian, and Frank Pastorino (the "Sg)do transfer 80% of the shares of
Al to Global Gold Mining in exchange for 100,00Gsks of the Company's common stock. All assetsu(iireg the "Athelea” name) not
related to the approximately 27 square kilometetik@mld/uranium exploration license area were sfarred back to the Sellers. Al was
renamed the "Getik Mining Company, LLC." As of Ma§, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the remajntwenty percent interest in
Getik Mining Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Ming as the owner of one hundred percent of GetikiidilCompany, LLC.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.




Lichkvadz-Tei and Terterasar
Lichtvadz-Tei and Terterasar are located in thelsya Armenia province of Syunik.

On August 15, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatint venture agreement with Iberian Resourdested’s subsidiary, Caucusus
Resources Ltd. (“CR”") to form the Aigedzor Mining@pany, LLC ("AMC") on an 80% CR, 20% Global Goldriihg basis in anticipation
of jointly acquiring and developing (a) for the hlovadz-Tei and Terterasar mining properties as agthe associated plant and assets in
southern Armenia through the Armenian limited lidgpicompany Sipan 1, LLC ("Sipan 1") which is tleensee; and (b) mineral exploration
and related properties within a 20 kilometer radifithe southern Armenian town of Aigedzor.

On December 19, 2006, Global Gold Mining enteréRestructuring, Royalty, and Joint Venture TermioatAgreement” with CR. The
agreement restructures the parties' Aigedzor Midogipany Joint Venture to transfer Global Gold Minis 20% interest to CR in exchange
for: one million dollars; a 2.5% Net Smelter Ret(tNSR”") royalty payable on all products produceonh the Lichkvaz and Terterasar mines
as well as from any mining properties acquired 20&ilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in #wrn Armenia; the right to participate

to 20% in any new projects undertaken by Iberiaitsoaffiliates in Armenia until August 15, 2015)cafive million shares of Iberian's
common stock, which are restricted for one yearF@oruary 28, 2007, Iberian Resources Limited anoed its merger with Tamaya
Resources Limited (“Tamaya”), and Tamaya is nowetlgping those properties. As part of the merder five million shares of Iberian’s
common stock were exchanged for twenty million ekaf Tamaya’s common stock without any restrictio@lobal Gold Mining retains the
right to participate up to 20% in any new projaatslertaken by Tamaya or its affiliates in ArmenmillAugust 15, 2015 and the 2.5% Net
Smelter Return royalty as described above. Dutiegyear ended December 31, 2007, the Companyad8,000,000 shares of the Tamaya
Resources Limited Stock that it owned. In 2008n&ga and Iberian Resources filed for bankruptciustralia and tried to sell the
Lichkvadz-Tei and Terterasar licenses. The Compesytaken action to protect its rights. On infation and belief, the license for
Lichkvadz-Tei was terminated by Armenian authositie March 2009.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pradiags”, below.




(4) CHILE PROPERTIES

The Company operates an office in Santiago, Chilielwis engaged in exploration activities, develepirof mining projects, and acquisition
review. A map showing the location of the propentfhile (below) and other information about thegerties are located on the Company's
website.

Madre De Dios and Puero

The Madre De Dios and Puero properties are lodateduth central Chile, near Valdivia, and apprcadely 700 km south of Santiango. The
property consists of approximately 25,000 hectaiiédse geographic coordinates of the central path@foroperty are approximately 39°00'S
and 72°00'W. Access to the property is by pavestisoand gravel roads. Infrastructure at the sakides electrical power, cell phone
network and road building equipment. Water, battustrial and potable, is drawn from wells. Therpany has a hanger and bulldozer at
the property.

The property is underlain by metamorphic and ctistarocks of Paleozoic age, including sericitbist; black to blue shale, altered
sandstone and andesite. These rocks comprisesieenznt rock assemblage in the area. In geneeak tocks are foliated and, in places,
intruded by granite, granodiorite and dioritic dike

The Madre De Dios and Puero properties are maiphaeer deposit which will be mined using an op#n phe Company’s claims are
National exploitation licenses which carry definétirights as long as the fees are paid. The Coynigaiequired to pay governmental fees
approximately $80,000 per year. If gold productidomore than the $80,000 in value, then this arhmurefunded. The property is subject to
a 17% Net Profits tax on production. As. Adafcember 31, 2008, the Company has not generajeceenue from sales of any
concentrate or other mineralized material at tloperty. As of December 31, 2008, the Company pastsapproximately $400,000 on



mining and exploration activities at this propesycluding acquisition and capital costs.




On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidungugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agreénvégh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios anddpeperties. The name of the joint venture camyga Compania Minera Global Gold
Valdivia S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia”).

Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointtuemnagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October
30, 2007), and the following joint venture termguity interests set at 51%-49% in favor of Globald of the 3 directors, two (Mr.

Krikorian and Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice Pd&sit in Santiago) are appointed by Global Gold;p@lgsold commits to finance at least
one plant and mining operation within 3 years ab asea mutually agreed exploration program totdith proven reserves, and if that is
successful, two additional plants/operations wélifimanced; and from the profits of the joint vartuGlobal Gold will pay its partner an extra
share based on the following scale of 28 milliorosifor (a) 5 million ounces of gold produced igears or (b) 5 million ounces of gold
proven as reserves according to Canadian 43-1@dlatds in 5 years. The Company has completed adiamstandard NI 43-101 report on
the property, which is available on the Company&bsite.

In 2008, the Company planned its mining optionsluding plant systems and sites, and chose the &ugge site to begin.
See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.

Ipun Island and Chiloe Island Properties

Ipun Island and Chiloe Island are located in Sautl@hile.

On September 5, 2007, the Company entered intofidential agreement which was made public on Cat@9, 2007, with members of the
Quijano family by which the Company has the optomarn a 51% interest in the Estrella del Sur &da&tinum project on Ipun Island and
another gold-platinum property on Chiloe Islandh I@arch 31, 2008, this agreement was amended &waimgf the licenses for the Ipun and
Chiloe islands to Global Gold Valdivia in excharfge250,000 restricted shares of common stock ob@l Gold Corporation at a fair market
value of $0.23 per share, all as further describdgkhibit 10.5 of Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2008.

On October 3, 2008, the Company entered into avekd an agreement to sell all of the Company’séstén its Chiloe and Ipun island
properties in Chile back to the Quijano family $#00,000 and certain mining equipment, and othesideration, all as further described in
Exhibit 10.3 of Form 8-K filed on October 8, 2008he Company has no further interest or activitthwespect to these properties.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
Santa Candelaria
Santa Candelaria is located in Comuna de Diegolamgro, Region Il of Chile.

The Company, on January 15, 2003, entered intgtardpurchase/lease agreement with Alfredo Sotindocand Adrian Soto Torino for the
purchase of copper gold properties in Chanarakididtl Chile (the Candelaria 1 to 3, the Santan@elaria 1 to 8 and the Torino | mining
claims 1 through 7 and Torino Il mining claims tahgh 11) (the "Chilean Agreement"). The Companyently refers to all of the properti
acquired by the Chilean Agreement as "Santa Carndélahe Agreement was converted into a purchgseeament on February 4, 2004.

After certain exploration activities, including litad drilling in 2005, the Company determined tihdhould discontinue its exploration
operations at Santa Candelaria, and wrote downviestment. Further, on January 13, 2006, Mine@b@llentered into a purchase, option,
and royalty agreement with Mr. Adrian Soto Toriaa;itizen of Chile ("AST") to transfer the miningrecessions Candelaria 1, 2, and 3 to
AST to mine the gold property and pay Minera Gladbalet smelter royalty of 10% until such time as&ta Global has been paid $75,000
and thereafter a net smelter royalty of 2% forlifeeof the mine. All liabilities and fees asso@dtwith the property are the responsibility of
AST, and Minera Global retains the option to reaegthe mining concession upon 60 days notice aydngnt of 1,000,000 Chilean pesos
(approximately $1,590 USD using exchange ratessaeber 31, 2008).

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.




(5) CANADA PROPERTIES

A map showing the location of the properties in &mnand other information about the propertiedca@ed on the Company's website. The
Company is winding down its operations in Canada.

Grand Lake and Shallow Lake
The Grand Lake and Shallow Lake properties aretéacim the Canadian province of Newfoundland aniorador.

In 2007, the Company, through Global Gold Uranigarried out a ground prospecting survey investiggdirborne radiometric anomalies
and lake sediment geochemical anomalies which ked Hetected by earlier surveys carried out byrnginompanies in the 1960s and
1970s. This work was carried out over the six smpaclaim blocks situated north and northwest appy Valley-Goose Bay, Labrador.

On January 18, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enteréalarn’'Labrador Uranium Claims Agreement" with Masglexander Turpin and James
Weick to acquire an option to acquire a one hungerdent interest ownership of mineral licensetsgtt or near Grand Lake (approximately
1,850 acres) and Shallow Lake (approximately 5a&@s). According to the Labrador Uranium Claimse®gnent, Global Gold Uranium
would be solely responsible for exploration and agement during the option periods and can exetiseseption to acquire one hundred
percent of the license rights at either propertgianting the sellers a 1.5% NSR royalty which lsarbought out for $2,000,000 cash or at
seller's option in common stock of the Company edlat the six month weighted average of the stdble &ime of exercise. All dollar
references are to Canadian dollars. Global Golechiuma would earn a One Hundred Percent (100%) optidhe Licenses by paying cash i
common stock (20,000 shares initial deposit). lditah, Global Gold Uranium completed staking 30diras (approximately 18,531 acres) in
the immediate vicinity of the Grand Lake and Shallcake properties. With respect to the Shallowd talansaction, the sellers breached a
representation and warranty to keep the licendgsig force for a period after acquisition, seVvefahe licenses lapsed, and Global Gold
Uranium, in its own name, successfully staked #meslicenses in June 2007. In 2007, the Companguzied sampling and other
exploration activities on these properties, buhaitt conclusive results as to their prospectivithe Company has not issued the initial
20,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company, @ptdasing out of uranium exploration activitieCianada.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
Cochrane Pond
The Cochrane Pond property is located in southeabtewfoundland, Canada.

On April 12, 2007, Global Gold Uranium entered gne@ment to acquire an option for the Cochrane Hoedse area (the "Option
Agreement") with Commander Resources Ltd. ("Comredhdnd Bayswater Uranium Corp. ("Bayswater"). Taehrane Pond property
consists of 2,600 claims within 61,000 hectarept@dmately 150,708 acres). The Agreement is suligethe conclusion of an option
agreement. Major terms include the following: GibGold Uranium may earn a 51% equity interest @a/period of four years in Cochrane
Pond Property by completing; Cash payments of UBE00 over four year period; Share issuance ofd@&0shares of Global Gold
Corporation (50 % each to Commander and Bayswtter‘CPJV")) over a four year period; and Propextpenditures over four year period
of C$3.5 million as further described in exhibita®n Form 8-K filed on April 16, 2007. As of Jud@, 2007, the Company has paid
$200,000 and issued 150,000 shares of the Compamyson stock, 75,000 shares each to CommandeBaysivater.

On October 17, 2008, the parties terminated théo®pgtgreement, and Global Gold Uranium entered artagreement (the “Royalty
Agreement”) with Commander and Bayswater pertaininthe Cochrane Pond property. The Royalty Agesgrgrants the Company a
royalty in the Cochrane Pond property and termim#te Company’s existing rights and obligation®eisged with the Cochrane Pond
property. The key terms of the Royalty Agreemeatthat the CPJV shall provide a royalty to the @any for uranium produced from the
Cochrane Pond property in the form of a 1% grossletion royalty from the sale of uranium concetesgyellowcake) capped at CDN
$1million after which the royalty shall be redudeda 0.5% royalty. In consideration for the royathe Company shall pay $50,000 cash,
$25,000 each to Bayswater and Commander withina38,dill as further described in exhibit 10.3 offf@-K filed on October 22,

2008. As of November 13, 2008, the Company laés $25,000 each to Bayswater and Commander.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
(6) ENVIRONMENT AND ETHICAL MATTERS

The Company's policy on environmental mattersatestin its Code of Business Conduct and Ethicscfwis posted on the Company’s
website), and requires compliance with all relevawss and regulations. The Company’s Insider Trgdind Public Information Policy,



Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Ri@s, Charter of the Compensation Committee oBthard of Directors, and its
Nominating and Governance Charter are also postets avebsite and require compliance with all raleaws and regulations. Specifica
the Company intends to conduct its business inrenerathat is compatible with the balanced enviromiaeand economic needs of the




communities in which it operates. In 2007, the @any instituted a whistleblower program to encoaregporting of any non compliance
with such policies and procedures.

The Company is committed to continuous effortaripriove environmental performance throughout itgatens. Accordingly, the
Company's policy is to: comply with internationtdrsdards as developed by the World Bank; compli wittapplicable environmental laws
and regulations and apply responsible standardsedéies and regulations do not exist; assess @jgis which will include a review of the
environmental issues associated with project dgvednt; make available these assessments to thepajgte government agencies for rev
and approval; encourage concern and respect fambieonment; emphasize every employee's respdibsibi environmental and safety
performance; foster appropriate operating practcektraining; manage its business with the gdatseventing incidents and controlling
emissions and wastes to below harmful levels; desigerate, and maintain facilities to this endpond quickly and effectively to incidents
resulting from its operations, in cooperation witdustry organizations and authorized governmeaneigs; and undertake appropriate
reviews and evaluations of its operations to meaptwgress and to foster compliance with theseigsli The Company has budgeted
approximately $102,000 for environmental compliaimc2008 of which it has made payments of approséfye42,000 to Armenian
governmental agencies for environmental compliamakhave accrued approximately $60,000. The cosh& Company to maintain
environmental compliance has had no substantidtdiion or restriction upon our ability to carrytaaur mining operations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following riskctars together with all of the other informatiomtained in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K before making an investment decision with respectur common stock. Any of the following risles well as other risks and uncertainties
described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, cduddim our business, financial condition and rexfl@perations and could adversely
affect the value of our Common Stock.

EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY

The Company did not engage in the active conduattcdide or business aside from development andm@xipn activities, it has not
generated any revenues to date, with the excepfioevenue from the transaction with Iberian Resesiat the end of 2006 and minimal s
of concentrate from Tukhmanuk. Although the Comyparaintains mining licenses in Armenia and hasrkeseaccording to the laws of
Armenia, the Company has not established proverpestzhble reserves, in accordance per SEC IndGatige 7, at any of it's properties
(please refer to the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Inees on page 3 of this report). The Company may enasyprbblems, delays, expenses
difficulties typically encountered in the developmhetage, many of which may be outside of the Campsacontrol. These problems include
but are not limited to issues interpreting and prg\historical mining data, obtaining and maintagguality equipment, licensing difficultie
and financing problems.

LIQUIDITY RISK — GOING CONCERN

The Company needs additional funds in order to aondny active mining development and productioarafions in the foreseeable future.
Especially in light of the international financi&isis starting in 2008, there can be no assurtirateany financing for acquisitions or future
projects will be available for such purposes ot suech financing, if available, would be on terragdrable or acceptable to the Company.
such, our independent registered public accoufitinghas concluded that additional revenue arrareggmor financing is needed to enabl
to fund our future operations, which raises suligbabout our ability to operate as a going concand accordingly has included this
uncertainty in their report on our December 31,8260nsolidated financial statements.

COMPETITION

There is intense competition in the mining indusiiige Company is competing with larger mining comipg, many of which have
substantially greater financial strengths, andtehpinarketing and personnel resources than thossegsed by the Company Although the
Company competes with multi-national mining compeanihich have substantially greater resources anbars of employees, the
Company’s knowledge of, and partners in, the apééts operations provide it with significant advages. The Company’s long term
presence in Armenia and the expertise and knowletlgs joint venture partner in Chile allow it tompete with companies with greater
resources.

NEED FOR KEY PERSONNEL

The Company presently has officers and operatiomagers intimately familiar with the operation ofnimig projects or the development of
such projects and with experience in former Sos@eintries and South America. While the Company ada¢dbelieve the loss of any director
or officer of the Company will materially and adsely affect its long-term business prospects, dbe bf any of the Company's senior



personnel might potentially adversely affect thenpany until a suitable replacement could be fodma: Company continues to employ
independent consultants and engineers, and emibloysgh subsidiaries personnel with mining, geolamd related backgrounds in
Armenia, and in Chile.




TRADING MARKET

The Company's Common Stock is currently tradecherQTC Bulletin Board. As a result, our stockhatderay find it more difficult to buy
or sell shares of our common stock than it wouldf lberr stock were listed on a national securiggshange.

LACK OF INSURANCE PROTECTION
The Company may not be able to obtain adequateansa protection for its foreign investments.
FLUCTUATION IN MINERAL PRICES

The prices of gold and other minerals historicélllgtuate and are affected by numerous factors teyloe Company's control and no
assurance can be given that any reserves provestiorated will actually be produced.

MINING RISKS

The Company's proposed mining operations will bgesit to a variety of potential engineering, setsamd other risks, some of which cannot
be predicted and which may not be covered by imsaga

There are risks inherent in the exploration fod davelopment of, mineral deposits. The businessioing by its nature involves significant
risks and hazards, including environmental hazandisistrial incidents, labor disputes, dischargéogfc chemicals, fire, cave ins, drought,
flooding and other acts of God.

The occurrence of any of these can delay or inp¢mxploration and production, increase exploraind production costs and result in
liability to the owner or operator of the mine. TBempany may become subject to liability for pathator other hazards against which it has
not insured or cannot insure, including those speet of past mining activities for which it wag nesponsible.

MINING CONCESSIONS, PERMITS AND LICENSES

The Company's mining and processing activitiesdagendant upon the grant of appropriate licensegassions, leases, permits and
regulatory consents which may be withdrawn or nmdsect to limitations. Although the Company bedisthat the licenses, concessions,
leases, permits and consents it holds will be rexevw required, when they expire, according to¢heent laws applicable in the respective
countries, subject to the licensing issues disddmdow in "Foreign Risks," there can be no assedhat they will be renewed or as to the
terms of any such renewal. Mineral rights withie ttountries in which the Company is currently opiegaare state-owned. Also see
discussion under Foreign Risks and Item 3. “Legat®edings,” below.

EXPLORATION RISKS

Minerals exploration is speculative in nature, imes many risks and frequently is unsuccessfulr@lean be no assurance that any
mineralization discovered will result in an increas the proven and probable reserves of the Compfareserves are developed, it can tal
number of years from the initial phases of drillemgd identification of mineralization until prodiar is possible, during which time the
economic feasibility of production may change. Sabtal expenditures are required to establishreserves through drilling, to determine
metallurgical processes to extract metals fromamiét in the cases of new properties, to construgingand processing facilities. As a result
of these uncertainties, no assurance can be diagitite exploration programs undertaken by the Gommvill result in any new commercial
mining operations being brought into operation.

FOREIGN RISKS

The value of the Company's assets may be adveaffelsted by political, exchange rate, economic ather factors in Chile, Canada and
Armenia. Armenia is a former Soviet country in s#@ion, and presents concomitant risks. In paréiguh the past, the Company has
experienced delays in the bureaucratic proceshas@xperienced dealings with corrupt officialthatMinistry of Environment and Natural
Resources in Armenia. The Company practices ataégrance program on corruption.

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corruptiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeaihd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and m thited States. Although the Minister took theipms that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuifitials assured the Company to the contrary Amdenian public records confirmed



the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compagceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prtipgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On November2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preregaito filing for international arbitration undére 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagpmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. AyvazianeT@ompany filed for arbitration




under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("IC&D@cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently pending for 2009. On June 25, 2008,Rederal District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqered to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry@azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistrictNdw York. In addition and based on the US Armedilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitts¢ Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfer Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Segtletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhay of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&gust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdest they have suspended the ICSID arbitration penddnclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfieement in principle, and anticipate that thelfgettiement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The CompaasyIearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Gollen LLC, which was granted an illegal and compgticense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligatiasssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As bfugey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagiteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does rietiathe pending ICC arbitration involving simikubject matter.

The Company has previously reported that it is awlaat another company has been using a similaemathme CIS and counsel has received
assurances the other company would cease usirsintilar name and that company was in the procesbhanfging its name. In 2007, that
company has provided official documentation thatis changed its name to one that is not simil@lobal Gold.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgksclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respectthese actions will not materially affect the C@np's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations.

NO DIVIDENDS

The Company currently anticipates that it will ietall of its future earnings, if any, for use ts operations and does not anticipate paying
cash dividends in the near term future. There @ndyassurance that the Company will pay cashelivid at any time, or that the failure to
pay dividends for periods of time will not advessaffect the market price for the Company's Comi8tock.

CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

Drury J. Gallagher, the Chairman Emeritus, Treas@ecretary, and Director, and Van Z. Krikoriatma@man, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director, own 2,578,453 (6.58%), and 2,100,0008%3Bshares, respectively, or a total of 4,678,43394%) shares, out of the 39,187,023
shares of the Company's Common Stock issued asthading as of December 31, 2008. The two Compéioers, director Nicholas J.
Aynilian who owns 1,027,002 (2.62%) and NJA Investits, which is controlled by Nicholas J. Ayniliamwns 1,400,000 (3.57%) shares of
Common Stock, entered into a shareholders agreenesetd January 1, 2004, that provides for eatheoparties to the Agreement to vote
such individuals as directors.

Firebird Management, LLC owns a total of 13,173,(83.62%) shares, Farallon Capital owns a totdl,885,830 (12.6%), and Persistancy
Capital owns a total of 2,000,000 (5.1%), out & 89,187,023 shares, of the Company's Common $&sekd and outstanding as of
December 31, 2008.

If these stockholders act in concert, they couldtiad matters requiring approval by our stockhosdéncluding the election of directors and
could have the ability to prevent or cause a cajgoiransaction, even if other stockholders, opposé action. The concentration of voting
power could also have the effect of delaying ovprging a change in control which could cause tasksprice to decline.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not Applicable

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES

The Company rents office space in a commerciatlimglat 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT witeigned a 5-year lease starting on
March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental costédf, 800. On October 1, 2006, the Company expandaiffite space by assuming the leas

the adjacent office space. The assumed lease dmthien one year remaining, through September(®®8, 2t an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for @oadtyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeutal cost of $22,860 for that



period. Messrs. Gallagher and Krikorian gave geaisguarantees of the Company's performance éofit two years of the lease.

For a description of the mining properties in whith Company has an interest, see Item 1 "Deswmnijti Business."




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corruptiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeand Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidwre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and m thmited States. Although the Minister took theipms that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiftiials assured the Company to the contrary Amdenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compagceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prispgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On November2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preregaito filing for international arbitration undére 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. Ayvaziahhe Company filed for arbitration
under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("ICE&D@&cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently pending for 2009. On June 25, 2008, ,Rederal District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqred to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry®azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistricNdw York. In addition and based on the US Armdilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitis® Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfier Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Settletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhayg of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&gust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdest they have suspended the ICSID arbitration penddbnclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfiabment in principle, and anticipate that thalfsettlement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The Compaaylearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Goldlen LLC, which was granted an illegal and competicense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligatiasssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As bfuaey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagiteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does fietiethe pending ICC arbitration involving similsubject matter.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgsclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respeatthese actions will not materially affect the Canyp's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
NOT APPLICABLE

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND SMALL
BUSINESS

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(a) Shares of the Company's Common Stock tradee®TC Bulletin Board under the symbol "GBGD." Taage of high and low bid
information for each quarterly period during 2001d 2008 were as follows:

2007 2008
Quarter High* Low* High* Low*
1st $ 1.1C $ 0.65 $ 0.7C $ 0.3t
2nd $ 1.0t $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.2C
3rd $ 115 $ 0.51 $ 051 % 0.0z
4th $ 1.01 $ 0.34 $ 047 $ 0.0¢

* These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices withretail mark-up, mark-down or commissions, araymot reflect actual
transactions. Source: Yahoo Finance



As of March 27, 2009, the Company had 39,187,023ed and outstanding shares of its Common Stoak Cimpany's transfer agent is

American Registrar and Transfer Company, with effiat 342 E. 900 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84hating a telephone number of (801)
363-9065.

(b) As of March 27, 2009, there were approximafeR92 holders of record of shares of the Compadgiamon Stock.

(c) The Company did not pay or declare any castieinds on its shares of Common Stock during itstias fiscal years ended December
2007 and December 31, 2008.




(d) The following table provides information abattares of our Common Stock that may be issued thfgoaxercise of options and rights
under existing equity compensation plans as of Bz 31, 2008.

Remaining available for

Number of Securities to Weighted average exercise issuance under equity
be issues up exercise price of outstanding compensation plans
of oustanding options, options, warrants and (excluding securities
warrants and right rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (@ &) (b) ($) (c) #
Equity compensation plans (1)
approved by security holders 1,677,500 $0.90 1,322,500
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 0 0 0
Total: 1,677,500 1,322,500

(1) The Company's 2006 Stock Incentive Plan - Qredib, 2006, the Company's stockholders approweibbal Gold Corporation 2006
Stock Incentive Plan (the "2006 Stock IncentivenPlainder which a maximum of 3,000,000 shares oh@on Stock may be issued (subject
to adjustment for stock splits, dividends and tke)l The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan replaces then@my's Option Plan of 1995 which
terminated in June 2005. The Company's 2006 Stumntive Plan has a ten - year term and will expirdune 15, 2016. On June 15, 2006,
the Company granted options to buy 250,000 shdresmomon stock, at an exercise price of $1.70 pares to the then Chairman and CEO,
Drury Gallagher. On June 15, 2006, the Company giianted options to buy 62,500 shares of commarks#i an exercise price of $1.70 per
share, to the Controller, Jan Dulman. On Septerh®eP006, the Company granted options to buy 2@0sb@res of common stock, at an
exercise price of $1.25 per share, to the thenf@yperating Officer, Michael T. Mason. On Januar®007, the Company granted options to
buy 83,334 shares of common stock, at an exercise pf $0.88 per share, to the Senior Vice Pregifter Exploration and Development,
Hrayr Agnerian. On January 11, 2007, the Compaamptgd options to each of the five directors to b0§,000 (500,000 total) shares of
common stock, at an exercise price of $0.86 peresh@n June 15, 2007, the Company granted optmhay 116,666 shares of common
stock, at an exercise price of $0.83 per sharthe®&enior Vice President for Exploration and Depelent, Hrayr Agnerian. On June 15,
2007, the Company granted options to buy 150,0@8eshof common stock, at an exercise price of $0eBZhare, to the Chief Financial
Officer, Jan Dulman. On June 20, 2007, Michad\féson, the Company’s President, resigned from déitipn and forfeited options to buy
100,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise pfi1.25 and his additional vested options to bg,000 shares of common stock have
expired unexercised as of December 31, 2008. Qob®@c1, 2007, the Company granted options to QD shares of common stock, a
exercise price of $1.00 per share, to a consulRmi| Airasian. On April 8, 2008, the Company g¢edroptions to each of the five directors
buy 100,000 (500,000 total) shares of common staican exercise price of $0.45 per share.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLA N OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsedrin conjunction with our financial
statements and related notes included elsewhéngési‘\nnual Report on Form 10-K.

When used in this report, the words "expect(sgelfs)", "believe(s)", "will", "may", "anticipate(sand similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Such statersemé subject to certain risks and uncertaintiéschvcould cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. Readers are cagtiot to place undue reliance on these forwasklihg statements, and are urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclesuglsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
COMPARISON OF TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

During the twelve-month period ended December 8082the Company's administrative and other expewsee $3,546,952 which
represented a decrease of $1,399,376 from $4,%8&3Re same period last year. The expense dexreas primarily attributable to lower



stock compensation expense of $436,027 less tleepribr year’s period, legal fees of $546,006 tbss the prior year’s period, travel
expenses of $65,456 less then the prior year'sgennd investor relations of $41,000 less therptia year's period. During the twelve-
month period ended December 31, 2008, the Compamyts exploration costs were $3,127,266 which regméed a decrease of $3,370,456
from $6,497,722 in the same period last year. Kpeese decrease was primarily attributable to dweehsed mining activity at the Canadian
properties of $534,994, Marjan property of $1,76%,ITukhmanuk property of $1,048,752, the Getikpproy of $181,597 offset by an




increase at the Chilean property of $305,776. myuthe twelve-month period ended December 31, 26@3Company's amortization and
depreciation expenses were $1,221,491 which repiex$an increase of $326,187 from $895,304 in dneesperiod last year. The expense
increase was primarily attributable to the increladepreciation expense of $215,022, and the inedeasortization of licenses of $111,165.
During the twelve-month period ended December 8082the Company had interest expenses of $18Wadh represented an increase of
$187,008 from the same period last year when ihdichave any interest expense. The expense sereas attributable to the accrued
interest expense of $166,257 on note payablatmeator and $20,751 on a secured line of credt lbbdwhich the Company did not have in
the same period last year. During the tweatventh period ended December 31, 2008, the Compathydvenue of $14,211 which represel
a decrease of $21,637 from $35,848 in the samegkst year. The decrease in revenue is primatitibutable to a decrease in royalty
income of $11,238 and sales of gold concentragl6f399. The Company had a loss from sale of j@ntures in 2008 of $765,264. No
sales of joint venture interest or properties ogliin 2007. The difference is due to the Compar008 selling its interest in the Ipun and
Chiloe island properties in Chile at a loss of $384 and its interest in the Cochrane Pond properBanada at a loss of $377,500. The
Company also had no sales of investments in 20@8mapared to a $2,460,137 gain in the same peaid/ear. During the twelve-month
period ended December 31, 2008, the Company had gaiforeign exchange of $56,704 which represeatgecrease of $2,137,457 from
$2,194,161 in the same period last year. The diffee is primarily due to fluctuation in currencybkange rates between the US Dollar and
the Armenian Dram. The Company had interest incoh®2,564 in 2008 which represented a decreasé28,926 from $126,490 from the
same period last year. The decrease is attriltallower average cash balance in the UniteceStadink accounts and lower interest rates.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
As of December 31, 2008, the Company's total assats $8,216,399, of which $228,371 consisted shaa cash equivalents.
The Company's expected plan of operation for thenciar year 2009 is:

(a) To continue and to expand gold and silver petida at the Tukhmanuk property in Armenia whichammenced in 2008, to generate
income from offering services from the ISO certiflab operating at Tukhmanuk, and to continue fae this property to confirm historic
reserve reports, and to explore and develop MaGatik and other mining properties in Armenia andénerate cash flow and establish g
silver and other reserves;

(b) To generate revenue by production at an Irsita selected Guadalupe, of the over 100 potesitis identified, at the Madre De Dios and
Puero properties in Chile through the Companglobal Gold Valdivia joint venture and conduatlfer development, exploration, and mir
at these properties;

(c) To complete the phase out of uranium explora#ictivities in the Canadian province of Newfoamdl and Labrador, retaining a royalty
interest in the Cochrane Pond property;

(d) To review and acquire additional mineral begupnoperties; and
(e) Pursue additional financing through privateplaents, debt and/or joint ventures.

The Company retains the right until December 30920 elect to participate at a level of up to 28%h Sterlite Gold Ltd. or any of its
affiliates in any exploration project undertakerAirmenia. This agreement is governed by New Yovkdad includes New York courts as
choice of forum. On October 2, 2006, Vendanta RessuPlc announced that its tender to take coofrSterlite Gold Ltd. was successful
which made it a successor to the twenty percenicfyzation with Sterlite Gold Ltd. In September 20 edanta (and Sterlite) announced that
they had closed a stock sale transaction with Gading Ltd., which made GeoProMining Ltd. andatf§iliates the successors to the 20%
participation right.

The Company retains the right to participate upG®o in any new projects undertaken by the Armen@mpany Sipan 1, LLC and succes:
to and affiliates of Iberian Resources Limited, ethmerged with Tamaya Resources Limited, in Armemi@é August 15, 2015. In addition,
the Company has a 2.5% NSR royalty on productiomfthe Lichkvaz-Tei and Terterasar mines as weftam any mining properties in a 20
kilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in southérmenia. On February 28, 2007, Iberian Resoutg@ited announced its merger with
Tamaya Resources Limited. However, as of Dece®bge2008, Iberian Resources and Tamaya have fileldenkruptcy in Australia and the
Company has taken action to protect its rights.

The Company also anticipates spending additiomad$un Armenia and Chile for further exploratiordatevelopment of its other properties
as well as acquisition of new properties. The Camypis also reviewing new technologies in explom&nd processing. The Company
anticipates that it will issue additional equityd®bt to finance its planned activities. The Conypanticipates that it might obtain additional
financing from the holders of its Warrants to puash 4,750,000 million shares of Common Stock ofXbmpany at an exercise price of



$0.15 per share, which expire on December 9, 20fltBese Warrants were exercised in full, the Campwould receive $712,500 in gross
proceeds.




The Company may engage in research and developelated to exploration and processing at Tukhmathwulkng 2009, and anticipates
purchasing processing plant and equipment assets.

The Company needs additional funds in order to aondny active mining development and productioarafions in the foreseeable future.
Especially in light of the international financi&isis starting in 2008, there can be no assurtirateany financing for acquisitions or future
projects will be available for such purposes ot suech financing, if available, would be on terragdrable or acceptable to the Company.

Although the Company has received a going concpimian from its independent public accounting fiiitris currently actively engaged in
raising additional funds. The Company has beea tbtontinue based upon its receipt of funds flleenissuance of equity securities and by
acquiring assets or paying expenses by issuingf,stiebt, or sale of assets. The Company's contiauistience is dependent upon its
continued ability to raise funds through the issigaof securities. Management's plans in this regeedo obtain other financing until
profitable operation and positive cash flow arei@sdd and maintained. Although management belithagst will be able to secure suitable
additional financing for the Company's operatidhsye can be no assurances that such financingavitinue to be available on reasonable
terms, or at all.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Stock Based Compensation - The Company periodicalyes shares of Common Stock for services redderfor financing costs. Such
shares are valued based on the market price dretigaction date. The Company periodically isstiesk options and warrants to employees
and non-employees in non-capital raising transastfor services and for financing costs.

The Company expenses stock options and warrants timel provisions of Statement of Financial AccovgnStandards (SFAS) No. 123(R),
"Share-Based Payment" (SFAS 123(R)). Stock-baseubensation represents the cost related to dtaskd awards granted to employees
others. The Company measures stock-based compmmsatt at grant date, based on the estimateudhie of the award, and recognizes the
cost as expense on a straight-line basis (nettiofi@gd forfeitures) over the requisite servicaqubrThe Company estimates the fair value of
stock options using a Black-Scholes valuation mobleé expense is recorded in the Consolidated rétates of Operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 200lsseand loss per share include the actual dexufdir stock-based compensation
expense. The total stock-based compensation expente years ended December 31, 2008 and 200%w881,919 and $1,467,946,
respectively. The expense for stock-based compensata non-cash expense item.

Comprehensive Income - The Company has adopteensgat of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13¢-AS 130") "Reporting
Comprehensive Income". Comprehensive income is deeibof net income (loss) and all changes to $tolclers' equity (deficit), except
those related to investments by stockholders, amigpaid-in capital and distribution to owners.

The following table summarizes the computationsmneding net loss to comprehensive loss for thaeyeaded December 31, 2008 and 2!

Year Ending December 31,

2008 2007
Net loss $ (8,953,11) $ (9,716,88)
Other comprehensive income $ 1,195,490 $ 1,307,48!
Comprehensive loss $ (7,757,62) $ (8,409,400

Acquisition, Exploration and Development Costs nital property acquisition costs are capitalizeddifionally, mine development costs
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andtrocting new facilities are capitalized until optgons commence. All such capitalized
costs are amortized using a straight-line basia mange from 10 years, based on the minimum original license t&racquisition, but do n
exceed the useful life of the capitalized costpotycommercial development of an ore body, theiegiple capitalized costs would then be
amortized using the units-of-production methodplBration costs, costs incurred to maintain curgentiuction or to maintain assets on a
standby basis are charged to operations. Costisasfdoned projects are charged to operations Umordanment. The Company evaluates,
at least quarterly, the carrying value of capitdiznining costs and related property, plant andpegent costs, if any, to determine if these
costs are in excess of their net realizable vahgkifea permanent impairment needs to be recordé periodic evaluation of carrying value
of capitalized costs and any related property,tpan equipment costs are based upon expectedloashand/or estimated salvage value in
accordance with guidance issued by the FASB, "Agting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assé






Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Management red@md evaluates the net carrying value of allitéesdl, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occureasfoother events or changes in circumstancesrttimiate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net réddizalue of each property based on the estimatdicounted future cash flows that will
be generated from operations at each propertyedtimated salvage value of the surface plant anghegnt and the value associated with
property interests. All assets at an operating segrare evaluated together for purposes of estigdtiture cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company does not hold any market risk sensitisieuments nor does it have any foreign curren@hange agreements. The Company
maintains an inventory of unprocessed ore and gahdentrate which are carried on the balance stseet December 31, 2008 at $1,199,034
and $69,180, respectively, and unprocessed or62%,872 and no gold concentrate as of Decembe2@®, with our Armenian subsidiary
Mego-Gold LLC. The Company does not maintain amyimodity hedges or futures arrangements with régpehis unprocessed ore.

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisiqypally of cash. The Company places
its cash with high credit quality financial institans in the United States and Armenia. Bank digpdsthe United States did not exceed
federally insured limits as of December 31, 200Bdid exceed federally insured limits by approxieiat$101,000 as of December 31,
2007. As of December 31, 2008 and December 317,286 Company had approximately $10,000 and $063@spectively, in Armenian
bank deposits and $27,000 and $70,000, respectiveGhilean bank deposits, which may not be induféne Company has not experienced
any losses in such accounts through December 8B, &0d as of the date of this filing.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency
fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, polificiibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements @Qbmpany, notes thereto and report of Indeper@eriified Public Accountants thereon
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2008 amember 31, 2007, by Sherb & Co, LLP, are attaclezdth as a part of, and at the end of,
this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not Applicable

ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurg

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresliéfised in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgateder the Security Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that ar@ded to ensure that information that would be negilito be disclosed in Exchange Act
reports is recorded, processed, summarized andteepwithin the time periods specified in the Sé&e@s and Exchange Commission’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulatedicommunicated to our management, includingtiesident and Chief Operating
Officer and Senior Vice President and Chief Finah@ifficer (our Principal Executive Officer and Reipal Financial Officer, respectively),
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardeguired disclosure.

As of December 31, 2008, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatibour management, including the
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Finandixficer, of the effectiveness of the design andragion of our disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Prindpakutive Officer and Principal Financial Officeancluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of theoderovered by this Annual Report.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaiaheguate internal control over financial reportidg defined in the securities laws,
internal control over financial reporting is a pegs designed by, or under the supervision of, dacipal Executive and Principal Financial
Officers and effected by our Board of Directors nagement, and other personnel, to provide reasemralrance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles and includes those policies and procesithiat (i) pertain to the maintenance of recdndsih reasonable detail accurately and fi



reflect the transactions and dispositions of ogets (ii) provide reasonable assurance that tcéinga are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie generally accepted accounting principles, drad our receipts and expenditures are
being made only in accordance with authorizatidne@nagement and directors; and (iii) provide reabte assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiong as disposition of our assets that could have terad effect on the financial statements.




The Company's internal control over financial reémgyis designed to provide reasonable assuramgaeding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external reporting purposes in accordandk generally accepted accounting
principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide mdgonable assurance with respect to financigmtnt preparation and

presentation. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechiorisk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures metgeriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentige of the internal controls over financial rejpgr{as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of Dece®be?008, based on the framework in Internal Comitegrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ltvay Commission.

Management, including the Principal Executive andd®al Financial Officers, based on their evaluabf the Company's internal control
over financial reporting, have concluded that tleenpany's internal control over financial reportimgs effective as of December 31, 2008.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company's registered public accogrfitm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management's report was nbject to attestation by the Company's registetddipaccounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cissiom that permit the Company to provide only ngemaent's report in this annual
report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repating

There have been no changes in the Company's iht@mtol over financial reporting that occurredtire fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the Company's internal control ofieancial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable
PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 is incorgied by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténaéating to the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held csround June 19, 2009.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incogted by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténedating to the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 19, 2009.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning required by this Itemid thcorporated by reference from the Companyisy6tatement relating to the 2009
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be beldr around June 19, 2009.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incorgied by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténaéating to the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 19, 2009.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incagted by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténedating to the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 19, 2009.






PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements.

The following documents are filed as part of tlepart: Financial Statements of the Company, inclgdhe report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants, Balance Sheet, Statements ef@ipns, Statements of Stockholders' Equity (D@fiexd Comprehensive Income (Los
Statements of Cash Flow and Notes to FinanciakBtants: as of and for the years ended Decemb@0B8,and December 31, 2007.

(b) Exhibits.
Exhibit 3.1

Exhibit 3.2

Exhibit 10.1
Exhibit 10.2
Exhibit 10.3
Exhibit 10.4
Exhibit 10.5
Exhibit 10.6

Exhibit 10.7

Exhibit 10.8

Exhibit 10.9

Exhibit 10.10

Exhibit 10.11
Exhibit 10.12
Exhibit 10.13
Exhibit 10.14
Exhibit 10.15
Exhibit 21
Exhibit 31.1
Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.1

Amended and Restated Certificatenabrporation of the Company, effective NovemberZim3. (1)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of then@any, effective November 20, 2003. (2)

Employment Agreement, dated as atiday 1, 2007, by and between Global Gold Corponatind Hrayr Agnerian. (3)
Labrador Uranium Claims Agreemerated January 18, 2007. (4)

Agreement to Acquire Option on Cate Pond Property dated April 12, 2007. (5)

First Amendment of the January ZB)& Share Purchase Agreement (Athelea Investmaai€ as of May 30, 2007. (6)
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Agnerian. (9)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors Globald3Corporation and Subsidiaries (An Exploratioadgt Company)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Global Gold Corporation and Subsikai\n Exploration Stage Compal
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 20@rthe related consolidated statements of operatindscomprehensive income,
stockholders' equity and cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and 2007. We did not auwglipériod beginning January 1, 1995
through December 31, 2008. These consolidateddiabstatements are the responsibility of the Camfsamanagement. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on these financial statenteaged on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finastaiaiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of isriral control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that areoppiate in the circumstances, but not for the pagpof expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal contrordvencial reporting. Accordingly we express nelswpinion. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutheunts and disclosures in the financial statesaét audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfinancial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablis lbasour opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and shég@f their operations and their cash flowstfar years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007in conformity with accounting principlesageally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieate been prepared assuming that the Companyamilintie as a going concern. The
Company has incurred significant losses as mohg di@lscribed in Note 2. These issues raise sulistaaubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Management's plaregard to these matters are also described in Adke financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result fromdh&ome of this uncertainty.

/s/Sherb & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants
New York, New York

April 14, 2009
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
December 31,
2008 2007
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 228,37. $ 298,03.
Inventories 1,057,83. 602,41.
Tax refunds receivable 178,90¢ 104,57-
Royalty receivable - 25,44¢
Prepaid expenses 8,45¢ 23,85:
Other current assets 39,14 94,25¢
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,512,71. 1,148,57
LICENSES, net of accumulated amortization of $1,842 and $926,668, respectively 3,460,76. 3,937,43
DEPOSITS ON CONTRACTS AND EQUIPMENT 440,51( 1,694,011
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulatespdeciation of $1,591,207 and
$854,453, respectively 2,802,41! 2,836,11!
$ 8,216,39! $ 9,616,14!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,853,63. $ 1,587,21.
Deposit payable 150,00( -
Secured line of credit - short term portion 389,09¢ =
Current portion of note payable to Director 970,89( -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,363,62: 1,587,21.
SECURED LINE OF CREDIT - LONG TERM PORTION 286,941 -
NOTE PAYABLE TO DIRECTOFR 2,625,00: -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,275,561 1,587,21.
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock $0.001 par, 100,000,000 shauéhorized;
39,187,023 shares issuedaanstanding 39,187 33,86¢
Additional paid-in-capital 30,982,35 29,318,14
Accumulated deficit prior to developmetage (2,907,64) (2,907,64)
Deficit accumulated during the developnsage (29,480,24) (20,527,13)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,307,191 2,111,70
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,940,83 8,028,93.
$ 8,216,39" $ 9,616,14!

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(An Exploration Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

REVENUES

EXPENSES:

General and administrative

Mine exploration costs
Amortization and depreciation
Write-off on investment

Gain on sale of investment
Loss/(Gain) from investment in joint ventures
Interest expense

Bad debt expense

Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Interest income

TOTAL EXPENSES
Loss from Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations:
Loss from discontinued operations
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations

Net Loss Applicable to Common Shareholc

Other comprehensive income
Unrealized gain on investments

Comprehensive Net Loss

NET LOSS PER SHAR-BASIC
AND DILUTED

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES
OUTSTANDING - BASIC AND DILUTED

Cumulative
amount
from
Year ended January 1, 1995
December 31, through
December 31,
2008 2007 2008
(unaudited)
$ 14,217 $ 35,84¢ $ 56,04
3,546,95: 4,946,32 17,518,78
3,127,26! 6,497,72. 13,208,71
1,221,49: 895,30« 2,905,67!
- - 135,72
- (2,460,13) (2,779,77)
765,26« - (2,373,70)
187,00¢ - 461,00¢
151,25( - 151,25(
- - 181,39:
(29,349 - (139,76¢)
(2,564 (126,49() (357,239
8,967,32! 9,752,72 28,912,06
(8,953,11) (9,716,88i) (28,856,02)
- - 386,41
- - 237,80¢
(8,953,11) (9,716,88i) (29,480,24)
1,195,49 1,307,48 2,953,71!
- - 353,47!
$ (7,757,62) $ (8,409,400 $ (26,173,05)
$ (0.2¢) $ (0.29)
34,251,12 33,855,42

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
( An Exploration Stage Enterprise )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERBQUITY (DEFICIT)

Balance from February 21, 1980 to December 31,

(Note 1) (unaudited)

Adjustment for the restatement of par

value

Issuance of stock for acquisition of Eyre

Recources, N.L.
Proceeds received from private
placement
Net loss

Balance as December 31, 1995
(unaudited)

Warrants exercised
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 1996
(unaudited)

Issuance of common stock
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 1997
(unaudited)

Net income

Balance as of December 31, 1998
(unaudited)

Purchase of treasury stock
Unrealized loss on investment
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 1999
(unaudited)

Issuance of common stock in connection

with settlement
Cancellation of treasury stock
Settlement of accrued salary
Sale of warrants
Unrealized loss on investment
Net loss

Deficit
Accumulate: Accumulatec
Prior to and Other

Additional  During the Comprehensiv Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Developmer Treasury Income Stockholder:

Shares Amount Capital Stage Stock (Loss) Equity
898,07- $ 89,80" $3,147,69: $ (2,907,64) $ - $ - $ 329,85
- (88,909 88,90¢ - - - -
1,000,001 1,00¢ 849,00( - - - 850,00(
200,00( 20C 421,37: - - - 421,57
- - - __ (361,349 - - (361,34)
2,098,07 2,09¢ 4,506,97" (3,268,99) - - 1,240,08!
40 - 10C - - - 10C
- - - (668,57) - - (668,57)
2,098,11. 2,09¢ 4,507,07" (3,937,57 - - 571,60:
2,250,001 2,25( 222,75l - - - 225,00(
- - = (690,74) - - (690,74)
4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,82!  (4,628,31) - - 105,85t
- - = 34,944 - - 34,94+
4,348,11. 4,348 4,729,82  (4,593,37) - - 140,80(
- - - - (60,000 - (60,000
- - - - - (16,000 (16,000
- - - (93,826 - - (93,820
4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,82! (4,687,19) (60,000 (16,000 (29,026
20,00( 20 1,98( - - - 2,00(
(1,000,001 (1,000 (59,000 - 60,00( - -
1,000,001 1,00¢ 161,50( - - - 162,50(
- - 65C - - - 65C
- - - - - (90,000 (90,000
- - - (33,34 - : (33,34)
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Balance as December 31, 2000
(unaudited)

Net loss
Unrealized loan on investment

Balance as of December 31, 2001
(unaudited)

Issuance of common stock for
compensation

Net loss

Unrealized gain on investment

Balance as of December 31, 2002
(unaudited)

Issuance of common stock for cash:
at $0.25 per share, January
at $0.25 per share, July
at $0.50 per share, October
at $0.50 per share, October

Issuance of common stock for compensation:

at $0.25 per share, February

at $0.25 per share, June

at $0.25 per share, December
Amortization of deferred compensatio

Issuance of common stock for services:

at $0.25 per share, January
at $0.25 per share, April

Shares cancelled in September, which were

issued in January
Shares issued at $0.25 per share for
accounts payable in April
Fractional share adjustment
Unrealized gain on investment
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2003
(unaudited)

Issuance of common stock for
compensation

Forfeiture of common stock for
compensation

Sale of common stock

Issuance of common stock for service
Issuance of common stock for payabl
Amortization of unearned compensati
Net loss

Unrealized gain on investment

Balance as of December 31, 2004
(unaudited)

Issuance of common stock for compensation:

at $0.50 per share, January
at $1.00 per share, June

4,368,11. 4,36¢ 4,834,95  (4,720,54) - (106,000 12,78:
- - - (26,83) - - (26,83)

- - - - - (15,000 (15,000
4,368,11. 4,36  4,834,95  (4,747,37) - (121,000 (29,049
200,00 20C 9,80( - - - 10,00(

- - - (60,119 - - (60,119

] ) ; - - 247,400 247 40(
4,568,11. 4,56¢  4,844,75  (4,807,48) - 126,40 168,24
350,00 35C 87,15( - - - 87,50(
1,000,001 1,000 231,50( - - - 232,50
100,00 10C 46,40( - - - 46,50
400,00( 40C 185,60 - - - 186,00
1,800,001 1,80( (1,800) - - - -
900,00 90C (900) - - - -
90,00( 90 (90) - - - -

- - 165,80: - - - 165,80;

500,00 50C 24,50( - - - 25,00
250,00 25C 62,25( - - - 62,50(
(500,00) (500) (24,500 - - - (25,000
100,00 10C 24,90( - - - 25,00
20 - - - - - -

- - - - - (95,279 (95,279

- - - (616,820 - - (616,820
9,558,13. 9,55¢ 5,64556  (5,424,30) - 31,12¢ 261,94
250,00 25C (250) -
(526,83) (527) 527 0
3,000,001 3,00  1,482,00 - - - 1,485,00
90,00( 90 (90) -
240,00 24C  113,26( 113,50
316,75¢ 316,75

(688,039 - (688,039

- - - - - (31,129 (31,129
12,611,30 12,61 7,557,770  (6,112,34) - - 1,458,03
850,00 85C (850) - - - -
170,00 17¢ (170) - - - -



at $1.50 per share, December
Sale of common stock
Less: Selling expense for sale of
common stock
Exercise of warrants
Amortization of unearned compensat
Net loss
Foreign currency translation adjustme

45,00( 45 (45) -
4,000,001 4,000 2,996,00! - - 3,000,00
: (39,000 (39,000
220,00 22( 54,78 55,00(
292,99 292,99
(2,309,18) (2,309,18)
- - - - (38,517) (38,517)
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Balance as of December 31, 2005

(unaudited) 17,896,30 17,89¢ 10,861,47 (8,421,53) - (38,51) 2,419,33
Issuance of common stock for compensation:
at $1.50 per share, February 274,00( 274 35,72¢ - - - 36,00(
at $1.70 per share, June 925,00( 92t (925) = = = =
at $1.25 per share, September 200,00t 20C (200 - - - -
Forfeiture of common stock for
compensation (40,000 (40) 40 -
Issuance of common stock for payable:
at $1.15 per share, January 100,00t 10C 114,90! 115,00(
Sale of common stock 10,400,00 10,40C 12,989,58 - - - 12,999,98
Less: Selling expense for sale of
common stock - (764,95 (764,95))
Issuance of options for compensatior 225,89: 225,89:
Exercise of warrants 3,000,001 3,00( 2,247,001 2,250,001
Accrual of stock bonuses issued in 2! (27,95() (27,950
Amortization of unearned compensat 1,017,74 1,017,74.
Net loss (5,296,371 (5,296,371
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 842,73 842,73:
Balance as of December 31, 2006 32,755,30 32,75 26,698,33  (13,717,90) - 804,22( 13,817,41
Issuance of common stock for compensation:
at $0.88 per share, January 1 83,33« 83 (893) - - - 0
at $0.86 per share, January 11 50,00( 50 (50) > > > =
at $0.83 per share, June 286,66t 287 (287) - - - 0)
Forfeiture of common stock for
compensation (172,500 (179 (3,780 (3,959)
Issuance of common stock for payable:
at $2.00 per share, September (20i 500,00( 50C 999,50( 1,000,00!
at $0.86 per share, January 63,25( 63 54,33: 54,39t
at $0.85 per share, April 150,00( 15C 127,35( 127,50(
Issuance of options for compensatior 481,444 481,44¢
Exercise of warrants 150,00( 15C 16,35( 16,50(
Accrual of stock bonuses issued in 2 (14,85() (14,850
Accrual of interest on note (26,617) (26,617
Amortization of unearned compensat 986,50( 986,50(
Net loss (9,716,88i) (9,716,88i)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 1,307,48! 1,307,48!
Balance as of December 31, 2007 33,866,05 $ 33,86¢ $29,318,14 $(23,434,78) $ - $2,111,700 $ 8,028,93
Issuance of common stock for compensation:
at $0.17 per share, November 11 200,00 20C 33,80( - - - 34,00(
at $0.10 per share, December 10 20,00( 20 (20 - - - -
Issuance of common stock for payable:
at $0.55 per share, February 11 153,75( 154 84,40¢ 84,56
at $0.17 per share, November 11 100,00( 10C 16,90( 17,00(
Issuance of options for compensatior 279,92 279,92!
Conversion of note receivable into
shares (152,779 (159 (48,750 (48,909
Issuance of common stock for
acquistion:
at $0.45 per share, April 8 250,00( 25C 112,25( 112,50(
Accrual of interest on note (2,555 (2,55%)
Sale of common stock 4,750,001 4,75( 470,25( - - - 475,00(



Amortization of unearned compensat 717,99: 717,99:
Net loss (8,953,11) (8,953,11)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 1,195,49 1,195,49

$3,307,191 $ 1,940,83:

Balance as of December 31, 2008 39,187,02 $ 39,187 $30,982,35 $(32,387,89) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss

to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortization of unearned compensation
Stock option expense
Amortization expense
Depreciation expense
Accrual of stock bonuses
Write-off of investment
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations
Loss/(Gain)from investment in joint ventures
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Gain on sale of investments
Bad debt expense
Other non-cash expenses

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Other current and non current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plan and equipment
Proceeds from sale of Armenia mining interest
Proceeds from sale of Tamaya Common Stock

Proceeds from sale of investment in common stocteflite Gold

Investment in joint ventures
Investment in mining licenses

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from private placement offering
Repurchase of common stock
Secured line of credit
Due to related parties
Warrants exercised

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE ON CASH

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI

January 1, 1995

Cumulative
Year Ended amount
December 31, through
December 31,
2008 2007 2008
(unaudited)

$ (8,953,11) $ (9,716,88) $ (29,480,24)
717,99 986,50( 3,497,78:
279,92} 481,44¢ 987,26
491,29¢ 380,13 1,638,02.
730,19 515,17: 1,493,56!
- 84,56: 56,61

- - 135,72:

- - 237,80¢

765,26« - (2,373,70)
(29,349 - (139,76¢)

- (2,460,13) (2,779,77)

151,25( - 151,25(
(17,45% (26,617 155,56°
166,94¢ (1,232,21 (2,014,28)
433,42 736,23: 2,361,25;
(5,263,622, (10,251,79) (26,072,92)
(703,05) (1,705,68i) (4,020,571
- - 2,891,15!

- 4,957,73 4,957,73

- - 246,76°
- - (260,00()
(9,000 (1,654,16) (5,756,10)
(712,05)) 1,597,88! (1,941,01)
475,00( - 18,155,10
- - (25,000

676,04 - 676,04
3,595,89: - 3,573,67.
- 16,50( 2,322,25I
4,746,933 16,50( 24,702,06
1,159,08: 1,919,06! 3,528,89:
(69,667) (6,718,34) 217,01¢



CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Noncash Transaction

Stock issued for deferred compensation
Stock forfeited for deferred compensation
Stock issued for mine acquisition

Stock issued for accounts payable

Stock issued in exchange for services

Mine acquisition costs in accounts payables

298,03: 7,016,38! 11,35:
$ 228,37. $ 298,03. $ 228,37
$ - $ - $ 2,682
$ - $ - $ 15,42:
$ 36,000 $ 354,26° $ 3,629,501
$ - $ 210,55( $ 742,50(
$ 112,500 $ 127,500 $ 1,227,501
$ 17,00 $ - $ 25,00(
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ 50,69

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Global Gold Corporation (the “Company” or “Globabl@”) is currently in the exploration stage. lteisgaged in exploration for, and
development and mining of, gold, uranium, and otharerals in Armenia, Canada and Chile. The Comgdmyadquarters are located in
Greenwich, CT and its subsidiaries maintain offiaed staff in Yerevan, Armenia, Santiago, Chile @ntbnto, Canada. The Company was
incorporated as Triad Energy Corporation in thaeStd Delaware on February 21, 1980 and, as fudbscribed hereafter, conducted other
business prior to January 1, 1995. During 1995Qbmpany changed its name from Triad Energy Cotjmordo Global Gold Corporation to
pursue certain gold and copper mining rights infthmer Soviet Republics of Armenia and Georgiae TTompany has not established prc
and probable reserves, in accordance per SEC hydBstde 7, at any of its properties. The Compastock is publicly traded. The Compi
employs approximately 100 people globally on a yeand basis and an additional 200 people on aeabbasis.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is primarily on #hloration, development and production of golthatTukhmanuk property in the North
Central Armenian Belt. The Company is also focusethe exploration and development of the Marjash @n expanded Marjan North
property. In addition, the Company is exploringl @eveloping other sites in Armenia including ttenpany’s Getik property. The
Company also holds royalty and participation rightsther locations in the country through affiiatand subsidiaries.

In Chile, the Company’s focus is primarily on theration, development and production of goldnat Madre de Dios and Puero properties
in south central Chile, near Valdivia. The Companglso engaged in identifying exploration anddorction opportunities at other locations
in Chile.

In Canada, the Company has engaged in uraniumratiolo activities in the provinces of Newfoundleant Labrador, but is phasing out this
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produagijoortunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of which the Company operatesasiffellows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@f@ and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsidigy in the State of Delaware.
These companies were formed to be equal joint csvoea Chilean limited liability company, Mineradbial Chile Limitada ("Minera
Global"), formed as of May 6, 2003, for the purpo$eonducting operations in Chile.

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global Gatdenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global
Gold Mining LLC ("Global Gold Mining"), as a whollgwned subsidiary, both in the State of Delawateb@& Gold Mining was qualified to
do business as a branch operation in Armenia ams @ssets, royalty and participation interestsyelsas shares of operating companies in
Armenia.

On December 21, 2003, Global Gold Mining acquiré@% of the Armenian limited liability company SHAL.C (renamed Global Gold
Hankavan, LLC ("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), whialdhthe license to the Hankavan and Marjan propeiti Armenia.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining acquired 5@fthe Armenian limited liability company Mego-GoldLC, which is the licensee for
the Tukhmanuk mining property and seven surroundimoration sites. On August 2, 2006, Global Qdiding acquired the remaining
49% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC, leaving Global GdMiining as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLC.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaagaction to acquire 80% of the Armenian compaitlgeléa Investments, CISC
(renamed "Getik Mining Company, LLC") and its apynoately 27 square kilometer Getik gold/uraniumlexation license area in the
northeast Geghargunik province of Armenia. As @iy\0, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the rerimajr20% interest in Getik Mining
Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mining as the @wiof 100% of Getik Mining Company, LLC.

On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Go#hium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium™), as a whollyvaed subsidiary, in the State of
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium exjdoraictivities in Canada. Global Gold Uranium waslfied to do business in the



Canadian Province of Newfoundland and Labrador.
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On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidungugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢mvéh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumes a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios andd?pmperties in south central Chile, near Valdivdihe name of the joint venture comp:

is Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia S.C.M. (tbhkl Gold Valdivia”).

The accompanying consolidated financial statemgmesent the available development stage activitfesmation of the Company from
January 1, 1995, the period commencing the Compapgrations as Global Gold Corporation and Sulsedi, through December 31, 2008.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis for Presentation - The consolidated firzustatements at December 31, 2008 and 2007 ,arttié years then ended were prepared
assuming that the Company would continue as a gaingern. Since its inception, the Company, anaafibn stage enterprise, has
generated revenues of $56,044 (other than interesine, the proceeds from the sale of an intereahiArmenian mining venture with
Iberian Resources Ltd., and the sale of commorksibmarketable securities received as considarati@rewith) while incurring losses in
excess of $29,400,000. Management pursued additiorestors and lending institutions interestedimancing the Company's projects.
However, there is no assurance that the Compamhyhiin the financing that it requires or will a@be profitable operations. The Company
expected to incur additional losses for the nean tentil such time as it would derive substant@lanues from the Armenian mining interests
acquired by it or other future projects. These erattaised substantial doubt about the Companifitydb continue as a going concern. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements wezpared on a going concern basis, which contaatpthe realization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal coursebefsiness. The accompanying consolidated finastad¢ments at December 31, 2008 and .
and for the years then ended did not include apystdents that might be necessary should the Coypaminable to continue as a going
concern.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and 2007 have been ravisedbstitute an audit report in
conjunction with the cumulative columns being l&gke{unaudited) in the Consolidated Statements ef&jns and Comprehensive Loss
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for thiege covered in the Original Filing, and the Cdidaied Statements of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) being labeled as4udited) for years from inception through year enBecember 31, 2005. In addition, the
Financial Statements are amended to include assfitation between “additional paid in capital’dafaccumulated other comprehensive
income” for the year ended December 31, 2008 olCthesolidated Balance Sheets to be consistentthgtiConsolidated Statements of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) and revisther comprehensive income” on the Consolid&tdements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss and the Comprehensive Lossaatiie Notes to the Financial Statements. Weata@ansider the aforementioned
changes to the Consolidated Financial Statemerite toaterial and therefore have not labeled thes@laated Financial Statements as
“restated”.

b. Use of Estimates - The preparation of finansiatements in conformity with accounting principieserally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimatésssumptions that affect the reported amountss#ta and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefmges and expenses during the reporting periodiahcesults could differ from those
estimates.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash ézptvaonsist of all cash balances and highly igavestments with a remaining maturity
of three months or less when purchased and aredatrfair value.

d. Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Compafinancial instruments includes cash, receiv@tdad accounts payable and accrued
expenses. The Company believes that the carryirggats of these instruments are reasonable estirobtasir fair value because of the

short-term nature of such instruments.

e. Inventory - Inventory consists of the followiagDecember 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Ore $ 796,23 $ 522,87.
Concentrate 98,31: -
Materials, supplies and other 163,28’ 79,53¢
Total Inventory $ 1,057,83 $ 602,41

Ore inventory consists of unprocessed ore at thénanuk mining site in Armenia. The concentrate amprocessed ore are stated at the



lower of cost or market.

f. Investment in Tamaya Resources Limited Stock - Tompany classifies its marketable equity securéiavailable for sale in
accordance with SFAS No. 115. During the year dridiecember 31, 2007, the Company sold all 20,0@0sb@res of the Tamaya Resources
Limited Stock that it owned which resulted in alizzd gain of $2,460,137. As of December 31, 2@0&,Company no longer had any
investment in Tamaya Resources Limited Stock.

g. Deposits on Contracts and Equipment - The Comnpas made several deposits for purchases, theitpagbwhich is for the potential
acquisition of new properties, and the remaindetHe purchase of mining equipment.

h. Tax Refunds Receivable - The Company is sulbjealue Added Tax ("VAT tax") on all expenditur@sArmenia at the rate of 20%. The
Company is entitled to a credit against this taxaials any sales on which it collects VAT tax. Then@®any is carrying a tax refund
receivable based on the value of its in-processritory which it intends on selling in the next tweemonths, at which time they will collect
20% VAT tax from the purchaser which the Companyy ng entitled to keep and apply against its credit
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i. Net Loss Per Share - Basic net loss per shdrased on the weighted average number of commora@nchon equivalent shares
outstanding. Potential common shares includablbdércomputation of fully diluted per share resalts not presented in the consolidated
financial statements as their effect would be diititive. The total number of warrants plus opidhat are exercisable at December 31, 200¢
and 2007 was 6,352,500 and 4,497,916, respectively.

j. Stock Based Compensati- The Company periodically issues shares of comstock for services rendered or for financing casStech
shares are valued based on the market price dretigaction date. The Company periodically isstesk options and warrants to employees
and non-employees in non-capital raising transastfor services and for financing costs.

The Company expenses stock options and warrants timel provisions of Statement of Financial AccovpnStandards (SFAS) No. 123(R),
"Share-Based Payment" (SFAS 123(R)). Stock-basetpensation represents the cost related to dteskd awards granted to employees
others. The Company measures stock-based compemsatt at grant date, based on the estimateddhie of the award, and recognizes the
cost as expense on a straight-line basis (nettiofi@gd forfeitures) over the requisite servicaqubrThe Company estimates the fair value of
stock options using a Black-Scholes valuation motle¢ expense is recorded in the Consolidated i8tatts of Operations.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was dgyetdiofor use in estimating the fair value of tradetions that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, optionuatlon models require the input of highly subjeetissumptions including the expected stock
price volatility.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 200lhsseand loss per share include the actual dexufdir stock-based compensation
expense. The total stock-based compensation expenthe year ended December 31, 2008 and 200%%881,919 and $1,467,946,
respectively. The expense for stock-based compensata non-cash expense item.

k. Comprehensive Income - The Company has adoptddrent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 'SFAS 130") "Reporting
Comprehensive Income". Comprehensive income is deeibof net income (loss) and all changes to $tolclers' equity (deficit), except
those related to investments by stockholders, amimgpaid-in capital and distribution to owners.

The following table summarizes the computationsmeding net loss to comprehensive loss for thaeyeaded December 31, 2008 and 2!

Year Ending December 31,

2008 2007
Net loss $ (8,953,11) $ (9,716,88)
Other comprehensive income $ 1,195,449 $ 1,307,48
Comprehensive loss $ (7,757,62) $ (8,409,40)

I. Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes under Seatewof Financial Accounting Standards No.109, "Acting fol
Income Taxes" (SFAS No0.109"). Pursuant to SFAS 0®.the Company accounts for income taxes undetidgbéity method. Under tr
liability method, a deferred tax asset or liabilisydetermined based upon the tax effect of thiemifices between the financial statemen
tax basis of assets and liabilities as measurdtidgnacted rates that will be in effect when tiierences reverse.

m. Acquisition, Exploration and Development Coshdireral property acquisition costs are capitalizédditionally, mine development costs
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andtrocting new facilities are capitalized until ogiéons commence. All such capitalized
costs are amortized using a straight-line basia mnge from 10 years, based on the minimum original license t&racquisition, but do n
exceed the useful life of the capitalized costpotycommercial development of an ore body, theiegigle capitalized costs would then be
amortized using the units-of-production methodplBration costs, costs incurred to maintain curgentiuction or to maintain assets on a
standby basis are charged to operations. Costisasfdoned projects are charged to operations upmmanment. The Company evaluates,
at least quarterly, the carrying value of capitdiznining costs and related property, plant andpegent costs, if any, to determine if these
costs are in excess of their net realizable vahakifsa permanent impairment needs to be recordée periodic evaluation of carrying value
of capitalized costs and any related property,tman equipment costs are based upon expectedloashand/or estimated salvage value in
accordance with guidance issued by the FASB, "Agting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assé

n. Foreign Currency Translation - The assets adilliies of non-U.S. subsidiaries are translatéd 1J.S. Dollars at year-end exchange rates.
Income and expense items are translated at averap@nge rates during the year. Cumulative translaidjustments are shown as a separate
component of stockholders' equity.
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o. Principles of Consolidation - Our consolidatetahcial statements have been prepared in accadaitit accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and dehlhe accounts of the Company and more-than-50#edwubsidiaries that it
controls. Inter-company balances and transactiams been eliminated in consolidation.

p. Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization - Cafpited costs are depreciated or depleted usingtthight-line method over the shorter of
estimated productive lives of such facilities ag tiseful life of the individual assets. Productives range from 1 to 10 years, but do not
exceed the useful life of the individual asset.dbetination of expected useful lives for amortizatéalculations are made on a property-by-
property or asset-by-asset basis at least annually.

g. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Managemenieas and evaluates the net carrying value of allifees, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occureasfoother events or changes in circumstancesrttimiate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net réddizalue of each property based on the estimatdicounted future cash flows that will
be generated from operations at each propertyedtimated salvage value of the surface plant anghegent and the value associated with
property interests. All assets at an operating segrare evaluated together for purposes of estigdtiture cash flows.

r. Licenses - Licenses are capitalized at costama@mortized on a straight-line basis on a rarga L to 10 years, but do not exceed the
useful life of the individual license. At Decemlsdr, 2008 and 2007, amortization expense total€d 298 and $380,133, respectively.
Amortization expense over the next five years il

Year Amount
2009 $ 464,63
2010 $ 464,63:
2011 $ 464,63
2012 $ 464,63
2013 $ 464,63
thereafter $ 1,137,61

s. Reclamation and Remediation Costs (Asset Redine@bligations) - Costs of future expendituresegiovironmental remediation are not
discounted to their present value unless subjegtcdmntractually obligated fixed payment schedBlech costs are based on management's
current estimate of amounts to be incurred whemeaheediation work is performed, within current laawved regulations. The Company has
accrued approximately $60,000 as December 31, 200h it needs to pay towards it environmental ost

It is possible that, due to uncertainties assodiati¢gh defining the nature and extent of environtaknontamination and the application of
laws and regulations by regulatory authorities eimanges in reclamation or remediation technoldgy ultimate cost of reclamation and
remediation could change in the future.

t. Revenue Recognition - Sales are recognizedarghues are recorded when title transfers andghesrand obligations of ownership pass
to the customer. The majority of the company's htacentrates are sold under pricing arrangemehése final prices are determined by
guoted market prices in a period subsequent tddle of sale. In these circumstances, revenuagemeded at the times of sale based on
forward prices for the expected date of the fimttlement. The Company also possesses Net SriReitern (“NSR”) royalty from non-
affiliated companies. As the non-affiliated comigarecognize revenue, as per above, the Compaamyitked to its NSR royalty percentage
and royalty income is recognized and recorded20@8 and 2007, the Company recognized $14,211 25449, respectively, of royalty
income from a 2.5% NSR royalty from Tamaya Resatdmited’s Lichkvadz-Tei and Terterasar propertiedrmenia.

u. New Accounting Standards:

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB StatemenflBib (revised 2007), Business Combinations. Ttasegient replaces FASB
Statement No. 141, Business Combinations. ThieBtit retains the fundamental requirements in @&t 141 that the acquisition method
of accounting (which Statement 141 called the paselmethod) be used for all business combinatiot$ax an acquirer to be identified for
each business combination. This Statement defireeadquirer as the entity that obtains controlref or more businesses in the business
combination and establishes the acquisition dateeadate that the acquirer achieves control. $tasement’s scope is broader than that of
Statement 141, which applied only to business coathins in which control was obtained by transfeyrgonsideration. By applying the sa
method of accounting—the acquisition method—tdralhsactions and other events in which one enbtgins control over one or more other
businesses, this Statement improves the compayadiiithe information about business combinatiorms/jaed in financial reports.

This Statement requires an acquirer to recognigasisets acquired, the liabilities assumed, anchamcontrolling interest in the acquiree at
the acquisition date, measured at their fair vahsesf that date, with limited exceptions specifiethe Statement. That replaces Statement



141's cost-allocation process, which required th& of an acquisition to be allocated to the indlivl assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values.

This Statement applies to all transactions or o#fvents in which an entity (the acquirer) obtaiostml of one or more businesses (the
acquirer), including those sometimes referred ttirag mergers” or “mergers of equals” and combora achieved without the transfer of
consideration, for example, by contract alone osugh the lapse of minority veto rights. This Sta¢at applies to all business entities,
including mutual entities that previously used ploeling-of-interests method of accounting for sdrsiness combinations. It does not apply
to: (a) The formation of a joint venture, (b) Thagaisition of an asset or a group of assets thas$ dot constitute a business, (¢c) A
combination between entities or businesses undanmm control, (d) A combination between not-for{ffirorganizations or the acquisition

of a for-profit business by a not-for-profit orgaafion.
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This Statement applies prospectively to businesshimations for which the acquisition date is orafter the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December2®8. An entity may not apply it before that dianagement believes this Statement
will have no impact on the financial statementshef Company once adopted.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statement 180 — Non-controlling Interests in Consolidatedhafcial Statements ar
amendment of ARB No. 51. This Statement appliesaltoentities that prepare consolidated financiatesnents, except not-farofit
organizations, but will affect only those entitifsat have an outstanding noontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries tioa
deconsolidate a subsidiary. Not-forefit organizations should continue to apply thédgnce in Accounting Research Bulletin No.
Consolidated Financial Statements, before the aments made by this Statement, and any other apfgictandards, until the Board iss
interpretative guidance.

This Statement amends ARB 51 to establish accayatid reporting standards for the non-controllimgriest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies thaton-controlling interest in a subsidiary is amevship interest in the consolidated entity that
should be reported as equity in the consolidateahitial statements. Before this Statement wasdsdingited guidance existed for reporting
non-controlling interests. As a result, considezatiVersity in practice existed. So-called minoiitierests were reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position as liabilities nrthe mezzanine section between liabilities andtgqlhis Statement improves comparability
by eliminating that diversity.

A non-controlling interest, sometimes called a minoritierest, is the portion of equity in a subsidiaoy attributable, directly or indirectly, -

a parent. The objective of this Statement is torowe the relevance, comparability, and transpareifitie financial information that a
reporting entity provides in its consolidated fiogh statements by establishing accounting andrtieygostandards that require: (a) The
ownership interests in subsidiaries held by padtasr than the parent be clearly identified, ladebnd presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, lm#parate from the parent’s equity, (b) The amofiobnsolidated net income attributable to
the parent and to the non-controlling interestlearty identified and presented on the face ofdtesolidated statement of income,

(c) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest wthiéeparent retains its controlling financial istrin its subsidiary be accounted for
consistently. A parent’s ownership interest in bssdiary changes if the parent purchases additiowakrship interests in its subsidiary or if
the parent sells some of its ownership interesits isubsidiary. It also changes if the subsidr@gcquires some of its ownership interests or
the subsidiary issues additional ownership interesit of those transactions are economically simiand this Statement requires that they be
accounted for similarly, as equity transaction3 Wthen a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retaimedcontrolling equity investment in the
former subsidiary be initially measured at fairuaal The gain or loss on the deconsolidation obthssidiary is measured using the fair value
of any non-controlling equity investment ratherrtliae carrying amount of that retained investm@)tEntities provide sufficient disclosures
that clearly identify and distinguish between thieiests of the parent and the interests of thecootrolling owners.

This Statement is effective for fiscal years, amerim periods within those fiscal years, beginnimgor after December 15, 2008 (that is,
January 1, 2009, for entities with calendar yeatsgnEarlier adoption is prohibited. This Statensdrall be applied prospectively as of the
beginning of the fiscal year in which this Staterisrinitially applied, except for the presentatmmd disclosure requirements. The
presentation and disclosure requirements shalppbeal retrospectively for all periods presentedndgement believes this Statement will
have no impact on the financial statements of thm@any once adopted.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement Md, Wvhich amends and expands the disclosure remqeires of FASB Statement No.
133 with the intent to provide users of financkatements with an enhanced understanding of; halwdry an entity uses derivative
instruments, how the derivative instruments and¢teged hedged items are accounted for and howetated hedged items affect an entity’s
financial position, performance and cash flows sT®tatement is effective for financial statemeatdigcal years and interim periods
beginning after November 15, 2008. Management bedi¢his Statement will have no impact on the foirarstatements of the Company ol
adopted.

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsrdq&ASB) issued Statement of Financial Accountitgndards (SFAS) No. 162, “The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prinegl The new standard is intended to improve fir@meporting by identifying a
consistent framework, or hierarchy, for selectingaunting principles to be used in preparing finalhgtatements that are presented in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountnigciples (GAAP) for non-governmental entities.eT@ompany is currently evaluating
the effects, if any, that SFAS No. 162 may havé®financial reporting.

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting StandardsrddqaFASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) APB!-1, Accounting for Convertible
Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement) . FSP APB 14-1 clarifies that convertible
debt instruments that may be settled in cash ufibarenandatory or optional conversion (includiragtial cash settlement) are not addressed
by paragraph 12 of APB Opinion No. J&counting for Convertible Debt and Debt issued with Stock Purchase Warrants . Additionally, FSP
APB 14-1 specifies that issuers of such instrumshtaild separately account for the liability andiggcomponents in a manner that will



reflect the entity’s non-convertible debt borrowirage when interest cost is recognized in subsaqeriods. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years bagmafter December 15, 2008, and interim periodhiwithose fiscal years. The Company has
adopted FSP APB 14-1 beginning January 1, 2009tldsdtandard must be applied on a retroactivisbke Company is evaluating the
impact the adoption of FSP APB 14-1 will have ancibnsolidated financial position and results afragions.
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On June 16, 2008, the FASB issued final Staff RositFSP) No. EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities,” to address the question of whether instrumerdstgd in share-based payment
transactions are participating securities priordsting. The FSP determines that unvested shasspayment awards that contain rights to
dividend payments should be included in earningsshare calculations. The guidance will be effexfor fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evimigdhe requirements of (FSP) No. EITF 03-6-1 all asthe impact of the adoption on
its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB ratified Emerging IssuekTasce Issue No. 07-5, “Determining Whether artrimaent (or Embedded Feature) is
Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock” (“EITF 07-5"). Bf 07-5 mandates a two-step process for evaluathregher an equity-linked financial
instrument or embedded feature is indexed to thigyenown stock. Warrants that a company isshes tontain a strike price adjustment
feature, upon the adoption of EITF 07-5, are n@érbeing considered indexed to the company’s dacksAccordingly, adoption of EITF
07-5 will change the current classification (froguéy to liability) and the related accounting farch warrants outstanding at that date. EITF
07-5 is effective for fiscal years beginning afbmcember 15, 2008, and interim periods within tHasml years. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact the adoption of EITF 07-3 hdve on its financial statement presentationdiadosures.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-4#dd6(R)-8, “Disclosures by Public Entities (Emteses) about Transfers of
Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Intekggities” (“FSP FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8"). FSR$ 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8 amends
FAS 140 and FIN 46(R) to require additional disales regarding transfers of financial assets atedl@nt in variable interest entities. FSP
FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8 is effective for interanannual reporting periods ending after Decembef008. The adoption of FSP FAS
140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8 did not have an impact ordssolidated financial position and results ofragiens.

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table illustrates the capitalized tless accumulated depreciation arriving at thecaatying value on our books at December
31, 2008 and 2007.

2008 2007
Property, plant and equipment $ 439362 $ 3,690,57.
Less accumulated depreciation (1,591,20) (854,45)

$ 280241 $ 2,836,1L

The Company had depreciation expense for the yadeDecember 31, 2008 and 2007 of $730,193 ansl $B1, respectively.
4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the accountshp@gad accrued expenses consisted of the follawing

2008 2007
Drilling work payable $ 292,417 $ 1,070,45
Accounts payable 1,505,93! 285,46¢
Accrued expenses 60,03¢ 231,28t

$ 185839 ¢$ 1,587,221

5. DEPOSIT PAYABLE

On August 28, 2008, the Company received an advai$250,000 from one of the Madre Gold, LLC mensben the anticipated signing of
the July 31, 2008 Agreement, as further describetlé Agreements section below. As of SeptemBe2Q08, the agreement was terminated
due to non performance of one of the closing okiiga by one of the parties. As partial compeosetdr the non-performing party’s breach
of contract, the Company has retained this depasiif the date of this filing.

6. SECURED LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has secured a secured line of credit Arexim bank in Armenia. The Company pledgedatemining equipment with an



approximate value of $817,550 at its Tukhmanuk eriypagainst the line of credit. The maximum créxifor $656,631. As of December
2008, the Company had used $655,291 of which $38883payable in 2009 and $284,712 is payable iD20he credit accrues interest at
approximately 15% per year. The balance owed aeBwer 31, 2008 was $676,042 which includes acdnierkest of $20,751.
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7. SEGMENT REPORTING BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Company has sold its products to various custsmrimarily in former Soviet Union, but as of Mar24, 2009 the Company entered into
an agreement to sell the output of gold and sitegrcentrates from the Tukhmanuk mine to a Swissasmpany. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations on its customers aneigaly does not require collateral. The Compangrafes in a single industry segment,
production of gold and other precious metals inicigdoyalties from other non-affiliated companigsduction of gold and other precious
metals.

For the fiscal years end December 31, 2008 and,2003f the Company’s revenue was $14,211 and88#, respectively, which was all
derived from Armenia.

The following summarizes identifiable assets bygyaphic area:

Year Ending December 31,

2008 2007
Armenia $ 5,896,998 $ 6,703,56!
Chile 1,991,08: 2,205,71!
Canada 40,88: 368,38:
United States 287,44¢ 338,48:

$ 8,216,39' $ 9,616,14!

The following summarizes operating losses befoowipion for income tax:

Year Ending December 31,

2008 2007
Armenia $ 5,118,74. $ 4,862,39
Chile 865,48: 142,05¢
Canada 405,08! 702,42¢
United States 2,563,80: 4,010,00:

$ 8953,11 $ 9,716,88

8. CONCENTRATION RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisigypally of cash. The Company places
its cash with high credit quality financial institns in the United States and Armenia. As of Deoein81, 2008, bank deposits in the United
States did not exceed federally insured limits.Da&tember 31, 2008, the Company had approximatey00 in Armenian bank deposits
and $27,000 in Chilean bank deposits, which maybedhsured. The Company has not experienced asgdan such accounts through
December 31, 2008.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency
fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, poliiciibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.

9. OFFICERS' COMPENSATION AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The Company values shares issued to officers ubménir value of common shares on grant date.

On January 1, 2007, the Company entered into atogmpnt agreement with Hrayr Agnerian, designatiing as the Company's Senior Vice
President for Exploration and Development. Theleyment agreement provides that Mr. Agnerian valieive an annual base salary of

$62,500, and is entitled to receive any bonus &sméned in accordance with any plan approved kyBbard of Directors. Mr. Agnerian
resigned from the Board of Directors effective Daber 31, 2006. The employment agreement is fonigialiterm of two years, terminating



on December 31, 2008. Pursuant to employment agneeivr. Agnerian was also granted (i) Eighty Thié®usand Three Hundred Thirty
Four (83,334) shares of the common stock of Gl@udt Corporation pursuant to the terms of the Retett Stock Award to vest in four
equal installments of 20,834 shares every six ngmbmmencing on June 1, 2007 and (ii) optionstpise Eighty Three Thousand Three
Hundred Thirty Four (83,334) shares of common swfoRompany at the rate of 41,667 per year fronudanl, 2007 through January 1,
2008 (totaling 83,334) at $0.88 per share (thénmuéttic mean of the high and low prices of the Camyfsastock on December 29, 2006), to
vest in two equal installments of 41,667 share® @acJanuary 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008. On Juriz007, the Company entered into an
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representing a 140% increase over his previousyseftective June 1, 2007 and is entitled to reeeiny bonus as determined in accordance
with any plan approved by the Board of Directorlse Bmended Employment Agreement terminates on Desedi, 2008. Pursuant to the
revised agreement, Mr. Agnerian was also granteatiditional (i) 116,666 shares of restricted stimckest in three equal installments of
38,889 shares each on December 31, 2007, Jun®@®a2d December 31, 2008 and (ii) 116,666 stotkgpto purchase Common Stock at
$0.83 per share (the arithmetic mean of the highlew prices of the Company's stock on June 157206 vest in equal installments of
58,333 shares each on December 31, 2007, and Dec&hp2008. The restricted stock and options presly awarded to Mr. Agnerian will
continue to vest pursuant to his original Employtm&greement. The restricted stock and options abgest to a substantial risk of forfeiture
upon termination of his employment with the Compédaying the term of the Agreement and the opti@angwas madpursuant to the Gloh
Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. Ondeler 31, 2008, Mr. Agnerian’s contract was terneda

On January 11, 2007, the Company declared a stmoksto Dr. Urquhart of 10,000 shares of commookséd $0.86 per share for a total
value of $8,600. The Company also declared stockibes to 64 employees in Armenia for a total o720,shares of common stock at $0.86
per share for a total value of $17,845. The $25w4ds included in officers' compensation and iroaats payable and accrued expenses as 0
December 31, 2006.

On January 11, 2007, the Company also declare# btwmauses to 8 key employees in Armenia for a wit82,500 shares of common stocl
$0.86 per share for a total value of $27,950 whiest over 2 years. The $27,950 was included imunel compensation and in accounts
payable and accrued expenses as of December 3., 200

On January 11, 2007, the Company issued as dissfges to each of the five directors (Nicholasyhillan, Drury J. Gallagher, Harry
Gilmore, lan Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stockiops to purchase 100,000 shares of Common Stottled€ompany each at $.86 per sh
The option grants were made pursuant to the Gl@b&d Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. In &ddi the Company granted 50,000
shares of restricted Common Stock to Harry Gilmasan initial director's fee at the fair marketeabf $.86 per share.

On June 15, 2007, the Company approved a new emglatyagreement for Jan Dulman with respect tomisl@yment as the Controller of

the Company. The Board of Directors unanimouslgtelg Mr. Dulman as the Chief Financial Officer. Tegised new agreement provides
that Mr. Dulman will resign as Controller and assutime title of Chief Financial Officer effectivenri1, 2007 and will receive an annual base
salary of $125,000, representing a 108% increaselus previous salary and is entitled to receiwelzonus as determined in accordance
any plan approved by the Board of Directors. The agreement is for two years and two months tertimgan July 31, 2009. Pursuant to

the new agreement, Mr. Dulman was also grantetb@000 shares of restricted stock to vest in émual installments of 37,500 shares each
on January 31, 2008, July 31, 2008, January 319 26d July 31, 2009 and (ii) 150,000 stock optimngurchase Common Stock at $0.83 per
share (the arithmetic mean of the high and lowgsriaf the Company's stock on June 15, 2007), toiivesjual installments of 75,000 shares
each on August 1, 2007, and August 1, 2008.

The restricted stock and options previously awatdddr. Dulman will continue to vest pursuant t@ briginal Employment Agreement. The
restricted stock and options are subject to a auhiat risk of forfeiture upon termination of himployment with the Company during the te
of the Agreement and the option grant was madeupuatgo the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock hiive Plan.

On June 15, 2007, the Company approved the empluyaggeement of Lester Caesar with respect torhj@yment as the Controller
effective June 1, 2007. Effective August 1, 2007, ®kaesar will receive an annual base salary of0RR0) representing a 29% decrease over
his previous salary and is entitled to receive lamyus as determined in accordance with any plaroapd by the Board of Directors. The r
agreement is for one year commencing on Augusd@7 2nd terminating on July 31, 2008. Pursuartéatew agreement, Mr. Caesar was
also granted 20,000 shares of restricted stocks$bim equal installments of 10,000 shares eaclanoary 31, 2007, and July 31, 2008. The
restricted stock previously awarded to Mr. Caes#roantinue to vest pursuant to his original emyteent agreement. The restricted stock is
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture upomtimation of his employment with the Company durihg term of the Employment
Agreement.

On June 18, 2007, the resignation of Mr. Michaebbtaas the President and Chief Operating Officéh@Company and his assumption of
consultant role was effective. In connection witls transition and pursuant to the applicable ietstt stock awards from the Company, a
total of 150,000 shares and 100,000 options preWyagranted to Mr. Mason did not vest and have ntedeback to the Company.

On August 2, 2007, the resignation of Mr. Frankt®#&so as the Director of Business Operations iménia of Global Gold Mining was
effective. In connection with this transition angrguant to the applicable restricted stock awamois the Company, a total of 22,500 shares
previously granted to Mr. Pastorino did not vest have reverted back to the Company.

On December 14, 2007, the Company authorized & simtus to Dr. Urquhart of 100,000 shares of comstonk at $0.55 per share for a
total value of $55,000 based on the market shace.piThe shares were issued for services render2@D7 and immediately vested. The



shares were issued on February 11, 2008. The Gongiso declared stock bonuses to 82 employeesnreAia for a total of 26,750 shares
of common stock at $0.55 per share for a totalevalu$14,713 based on the market share price. 88& $3 was included in officers'
compensation and in accounts payable and accrysghegs as of December 31, 2007.
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On December 14, 2007, the Company also declare#t bunuses to 8 key employees in Armenia for d tftd7,000 shares of common st
at $0.55 per share for a total value of $14,85Qtkiest over 2 years. The shares were issued andfgill, 2008. As of December 31,
2007, the $14,850 was included in unearned comgiensand in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

On April 8, 2008, the Company issued as directees flo each of the five directors (Nicholas AymijiBrury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore, |
Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stock options to pas# 100,000 Common Stock of the Company each 45 $@r share, vesting on October
8, 2008. The option grants were made pursuantt&thbal Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

On August 1, 2008, pursuant to his employment ages¢, Mr. Caesar’s agreement was automaticallynebetet for an additional year though
July 31, 2009. On December 10, 2008, Mr. Caesargranted 20,000 shares of restricted stock toimesgjual installments of 10,000 shares
each on January 31, 2009, and July 31, 2009. Bieated stock is subject to a substantial riskoofeiture upon termination of his
employment with the Company during the term of Eneployment Agreement.

Between September 3, 2008, and September 9, 20€18Ids Aynilian, one of the Company’s independdirgctors, purchased a total of
192,002 shares on the open market at $0.10 pes.shide purchase was made in accordance with thgp&ay’s insider trading policies.

On October 3, 2008, the Company authorized thes=siof 300,000 shares of restricted common stwek.tUrquhart at $0.17 per share for
a total value of $51,000 based on the market gidre. The shares were issued both as a bonsefeices rendered in 2008 (200,000
shares) and in exchange for cancellation of $46a34f2bt (100,000 shares). The shares vested imatedd

On October 8, 2008, Nicholas Aynilian, an independzgirector of the Company, had an open order talpase 250,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock inadvertently executed dledlf Upon becoming aware of this transaction tmdvoid any appearance of a
conflict, per our inside trading policies, Mr. Ajiah immediately sold the 250,000 shares on Oct@be008 and disgorged profits to the
Company.

On December 31, 2008, pursuant to his employmeeeagent, Mr. Gallagher’'s agreement was automagieatiended for an additional year
through December 31, 2009 under the same terms.

Compensation expense for the years ended Decerhp2038 and 2007 was $2,927,192 and $2,897,118aiftoeint of total deferred
compensation amortized for the years ended Dece&ihe2008 and 2007 was $717,994 and $986,500.

The following table illustrates the Company's comgaion commitments for the next 5 years as of Bwes 31, 2008.

Year Amount

2009 $ 570,38
2010 -
2011 -
2012 -
2013 -

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coynpaid New-Sense Geophysics Limited a total of $49D for airborne magnometry
work performed on its Cochrane Pond property. Nmmse Geophysics Limited is owned and operatetdbZbmpany's Vice President, Dr.
Ted Urquhart.

On February 7, 2008, the Company received a séort bban in the amount of $260,000, an additio280$000 loan on March 10, 2008, and
an additional $300,000 loan on April 14, 2008 (edlively, the “Loans”), from lan Hague, a directdthe Company, which Loans accrue
interest, from the day they are issued and urgildéy they are repaid by the Company, at an amateabf 10%. The Company promises to
repay, in full, the Loan and all the Interest aecrthereon on the sooner of: (1) Mr. Hague’s denadtedt June 6, 2008; or (2) from the
proceeds of any financing the company receives $¥#00,000. The Company may prepay this loanllraflany time. But if it is not repaid
by June 10, 2008, Mr. Hague will have the rightpamother rights available to Mr. Hague under #w, lto convert the loan plus accrued
interest to Common Stock of the Company at theepradculable and on the terms of the Global Golth@a@tion 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan. In addition, Mr. Hague will have the rightay time to convert the terms of all or a portidrihe Loan to the terms provided to any
third party investor or lender financing the compain connection with the Loan, pursuant to thenpany’s standing policies, including it's
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and NominaimbGovernance Charter, the Board of Directoré@etithout the participation of Mr.
Hague, reviewed and approved the Loan and its texntsdetermined the borrowings to be in the Comigarest interest. On May 12, 2008,
the Company received an advance of $1,500,000 madditional advance of $800,000 on July 7, 20@8dctively, the “Advances”), from



Mr. Hague on the anticipated signing of the JulyZ108 Agreement. On September 23, 2008, aftetetin@ination of the July 31, 2008
Agreement, the Company restructured the Loanshanddvances into a new agreement (the “Loan ancaRgy which became effective
November 6, 2008. Key terms of the Loan and Rgyiattlude interest accruing from September 23, 2008 the day the loan is repaid
full at an annual rate of 10% and the Company grgra royalty of 1.75% from distributions to ther@pany from the sale of gold and all
other metals produced from the Madre De Dios prypzrrrently included in the Global Gold Valdiviaift venture with members of the
Quijano family. At December 31, 2008 accrued ieseéwas $166,257.
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10. INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under Statieofi€&inancial Accounting Standards No. 109, Acdmng for Income Taxes ("SFAS
No. 109"). SFAS No. 109 requires the recognitiodeferred tax assets and liabilities for both theeeted impact of differences between
financial statements and tax basis of assets ahilities, and for the expected future tax berntefibe derived from tax loss and tax credit c
forwards. SFAS No. 109 additionally requires thialeshment of a valuation allowance to reflectlikelihood of realization of deferred tax
assets. At December 31, 2008, the Company hadefietred tax assets of $10,876,000. The Companpioasled a valuation allowance,
which increased during 2008 by $3,574,000, agaiestull amount of its deferred tax asset, sineelitkelihood of realization cannot be
determined.

The following table illustrates the source andustaif the Company's major deferred tax assets Beaémber 31, 2008.

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwa $10,481,00
Stock option expense 395,00(
Net deferred tax ass 10,876,00
Valuation allowance (10,876,00)

$ -

The provision for income taxes for year ended Ddmam31, 2008 and 2007 differs from the amount cdetbby applying the statutory
federal income tax rate (35%) to income before inedaxes as follows:

2008 2007
Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate $ 3,133,000 $ 3,401,00I
State tax benefit (net of federal) 448,00( 486,00(
Permanent differences (book stock comp versus
tax stock comp) (7,000 (50,000
Increase in valuation allowance (3,574,00i) (3,837,00i)
Provision for income taxes $ - $ -

The Company had net operating loss carry forwasd$aik purposes of approximately $25,500,000 atbdser 31, 2008 expiring at various
dates from 2013 to 2028. A significant portion leéde carry forwards are subject to limitations wnual utilization due to "equity structure
shifts" or "owner shifts" involving "5 percent stidwlders" (as defined in the Internal Revenue Gufdi986, as amended), which resulted in
more than a 50 percent change in ownership.

11. COMMON STOCK

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatshare purchase agreement to acquire the Armkmiged liability company Mego-
Gold, LLC which is the licensee for the Tukhmanuikimg property and surrounding exploration sitesvali as the owner of the related
processing plant and other assets. On August(f,ZBlobal Gold Mining exercised its option to aicquhe remaining forty-nine percent
(49%) of Mego-Gold, LLC, in exchange for one miflidollars ($1,000,000) and five hundred thousaf@,(00) restricted shares of the
Company's common stock with a contingency allovihregsellers to sell back the 500,000 shares orfaréd September 15, 2007 for a
payment of $1 million if the Company's stock is tratdled at or above two dollars and fifty cents§$2 at any time between July 1, 2007 and
August 31, 2007. On September 12, 2006, Global Ghitdng loaned two hundred thousand dollars ($200)do Karapet Khachatryan
("Maker"), one of the sellers of Mego-Gold LLC, iizen of the Republic of Armenia, as evidencedalyonvertible promissory note payable
(“Note”) to Global Gold Mining, with interest in sgars on the unpaid principal balance at an amatlequal to ten percent (10%). At any
time following September 18, 2006, the Companytsadole option, had the right to convert all of kdds debt from the date of the Note to
date of conversion into shares of common stock@f@ompany at the conversion price of $1.50 pereshith all of such shares as security
for all obligations. Maker pledged two hundredyfifive thousand (255,000) shares of the Comparmyisneon stock as security for his
obligations thereunder. On September 16, 2007cdh&ngency period expired without exercise, extamser amendment. The Company has
accounted for this by booking the 500,000 shatehesafair market value of $1,000,000, into Addiéd Paid-In Capital. The Company also
booked the $200,000 secured loan into Note Recleivatd accrued interest, from inception of Notpesthe terms of the Note above, into
Additional Paid-In Capital. On February 12, 2088 Company exercised its option and converted tite Bind accrued interest into one



hundred fifty two thousand seven hundred sevemiyteshares (152,778), which were then cancellesla Aesult, the Company recorded bad
debt expense of $151,250 for the difference invéilae of the stock and the amount owed to the Compa

On January 11, 2007, the Company granted 50,00@sbérestricted Common Stock to Harry Gilmoraasnitial director's fee at the fair
market value of $.86 per share.
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In December 2008, the Company sold 4,750,000 ah$®.10 per share in a private placement. The imituded 4,750,000 common shares
and 4,750,000 warrants exercisable at $0.15 pee stral expire on or before December 9, 2013.

12. WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

The Company adopted the 1995 Stock Option Planrumdieh a maximum of 500,000 shares of Common Stoalt be issued (subject to
adjustment for stock splits, dividends and the)likea July 2002, the Company granted options tp 180,000 shares of common stock, at an
exercise price of $0.11 per share, to each ofttte Chairman, Drury Gallagher, and President ofXbeapany, Robert Garrison. Of these
options issued, 75,000 vest on the first annivgreathe date of issuance, and the remaining 75/@800n the second anniversary of the date
of issuance. These options expire five years filoendate of issuance. As of December 31, 2006¢ threre 200,000 stock awards available
under the Plan for future issuance. On June 304,20e former President and CFO, Mr. Robert Ganrigsigned his office and thereby
forfeited his options. On June 20, 2007, Globald@Zorporation sold $16,500 in common shares, @nsto exemptions from registration
requirements of the Securities Act to Drury Gallaghhe Company's Chairman Emeritus, TreasureSagdetary. The transaction involved
the exercise of options originally issued on Jube2®02. The transaction involved the issuancEs0{000 shares of common stock at $0.11
per share in accordance with the options. As afeb®er 31, 2007 there were no options remainingtanding under the 1995 Stock Option
Plan.

On June 15, 2006, the Company's stockholders apgritve Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incenken (the "2006 Stock Incentive
Plan™) under which a maximum of 3,000,000 shargSafimon Stock may be issued (subject to adjustfoeistock splits, dividends and the
like). The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan replaces tbem@any's Option Plan of 1995 which terminated imeJR005. The Company's 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan has a teryear term and will expire on June 15, 2016. Orelli 2006, the Company granted options to buy0®&0shares ¢
common stock, at an exercise price of $1.70 parshathe then Chairman and CEO, Drury GallagBerJune 15, 2006, the Company also
granted options to buy 62,500 shares of commorksti@n exercise price of $1.70 per share, tcCibrgroller, Jan Dulman. On September
18, 2006, the Company granted options to buy 2@sb@res of common stock, at an exercise pricd @5%per share, to the then Chief
Operating Officer, Michael T. Mason. On January2007, the Company issued as directors fees to@&ate five directors (Nicholas J.
Aynilian, Drury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore, lan §lse, and Van Z. Krikorian) stock options to pur&&60,000 shares of Common Stock of
the Company each at $.86 per share .

On December 31, 2008, Warrants, that were prewadended through December 31, 2008, expired.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock otigsing a Black-Scholes valuation model and tHewiing assumption terms: 3-years
interest rate: 5.0% to 5.7%; volatility: 100 - 160¥he expense is recorded in the Consolidated i8tatts of Operations.

The fair value of options granted at December 8082and 2007 was $100,000 and $157,167, respactivel

The following tables illustrates the Company's kte@rrant and option issuances and balances odistaas of, and during the years er
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, resphctive

WARRANTS OPTIONS STOCK AWARDS

Shares Weighted Shares Weighted Restricted Weighted

Underlying Average Underlying Average Stock Average
Warrants Exercise Pric Warrants Exercise Pric Awards Market Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 6,466,66! $ 1.82 662,50 $ 0.9t 5,137,16: $ 0.7¢
Granted - - 865,00( 0.8t 420,00( 0.84
Canceled (3,000,001 1.42 (100,000 1.2t (172,500 1.22
Exercised - - (150,000 0.11 > >
Sold in units - - - - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 3,466,661 $ 2.0C 1,277,500 $ 0.9: 5,384,660 $ 0.6¢
Granted 4,750,001 0.1t 500,00( 0.4t 220,00( 0.1¢€
Canceled (3,466,661 2.0C (100,000 1.2t - -
Exercised = - - - - -
Sold in units - - - - - -

Outstanding at December 31, 2008 4,750,000 $ 0.1t 1,677,500 $ 0.9C 5,604,66! $ 0.67




Vested shares and fair value 4,750,000 $ 0.1F 1,602,500 $ 0.9C 5,282,66! $ 0.6

Total intrinsic value - - - - - -
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In the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 afd,2Bere were no options exercised. The follovigngdditional information with
respect to the Company's options and warrants Beoémber 31, 2008.

WARRANTS

WARRANTS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE

Number of Weighted Number of
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Average Shares Remaining Average Shares Average
Exercise Underlying Contractual Exercise Underlying Exercise
Price Warrants Life Price Warrants Price
$ 0.15 4,750,000 4.94 years $ 0.15 4,750,000 $ 0.15
OPTIONS
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE
Number of Weighted Number of
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Average Shares Remaining Average Shares Average
Exercise Underlying Contractual Exercise Underlying Exercise
Price Options Life Price Options Price
$ 0.90 1,677,500 8.29 years $ 0.90 1,602,500 $ 0.90
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13. AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

On January 18, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enter&mlari'Labrador Uranium Claims Agreement" with Maesgklexander Turpin and James
Weick to acquire an option to acquire a one hungexdent interest ownership of mineral licensetggit or near Grand Lake (approximately
1,850 acres) and Shallow Lake (approximately 5a¢&@s). Global Gold Uranium will be solely respaitesifor exploration and management
during the option periods and can exercise theopb acquire one hundred percent of the licenggsiat either property by granting the
sellers a 1.5% NSR royalty which can be boughtfau$2,000,000 cash or at the seller's option immon stock of the Company valued at
the six month weighted average of the stock atithe of exercise. All dollar references are to Ghaa dollars. Global Gold Uranium will
earn a One Hundred Percent (100%) option in therlses by paying cash and common stock (20,000sstmitiel deposit). In addition,
Global Gold Uranium has completed staking 300 ctajapproximately 18,531 acres) in the immediataiticof the Grand Lake and Shall
Lake properties. With respect to the Shallow Lakeasaction, the sellers breached a representatidnvarranty to keep the license rights in
force for a period after acquisition, several & licenses lapsed, and Global Gold Uranium, iowa name, successfully staked the same
licenses in June 2007. The Company has not istieeiditial 20,000 shares of Common Stock of the Gany as of December 31, 2008, and
is phasing out of these properties.

On April 12, 2007, Global Gold Uranium entered iatbagreement to acquire an option for the CochiPamal license area ("the Agreement")
with Commander Resources Ltd. ("Commander") andsiayer Uranium Corp. ("Bayswater"). The CochranedPgroperty consists of 2,6l
claims within 61,000 hectares (approximately 158,&6res). The Agreement is subject to board app@owvd the conclusion of an option a
greement which the relevant boards subsequentiyoap. Major terms include the following. Globall@&Jranium may earn a 51% equity
interest over a period of four years in Cochraned?@roperty by completing; Cash payments of US $X@over four year period; Share
issuance of 350,000 shares of Global Gold Corpmids0 % each to Commander and Bayswater) oveurayfear period; Property
expenditures over four year period of C$3.5 million

Either party may, at any time up to the commencérmmeoommercial production, elect to convert itspective interest to a 2% gross uranium
sales royalty in the case of a uranium deposit2¥a\NSR in the case of a non-uranium deposit.threeicase, 50% of the royalty obligation
may be purchased at any time prior to commercw@dpetion for a $1,000,000 cash payment.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company has paid $206680ssued 150,000 shares of the Company's comimok §5,000 shares each to
Commander and Bayswater.

On October 17, 2008, the Company through Globatl®&yknium entered into an agreement (the "RoyafiyeAment") with Commander and
Bayswater pertaining to the Cochrane Pond Progtey“Property”) located in southern Newfoundlahdttis owned 50% by Commander
and 50% by Bayswater through a joint venture (tBBJV"). The Company originally entered into an agnent acquiring an option (the
“Option Agreement”) on the Property with Commanded Bayswater on April 12, 2007. The Royalty Agneet grants Global Gold a
royalty in the Property and terminates Global Gelofe-existing rights and obligations associatet RWroperty.

The key terms of the Royalty Agreement are thailGRdV shall provide a royalty to Global Gold foanium produced from the Property in
the form of a 1% gross production royalty from $iade of uranium concentrates (yellowcake) capp&Dait $1 million after which the
royalty shall be reduced to a 0.5% royalty.

The royalty shall remain attached to the Propenty ia the name of Global Gold or GGU as requiredaurthe local laws and exchange
regulations. The royalty shall survive the sald aransfer of the property to a third party.

In consideration for the royalty, Global Gold agt¢e pay a total of $50,000 cash, $25,000 cash #a€lommander and Bayswater, on or
before November 14, 2008. The Company paid $26¢a88h each to Commander and Bayswater on Novehib2008.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compizmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢nvéh members of the Quijano family by which MiagBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios anddPpeperties. The name of the joint venture camgga Compania Minera Global Gold
Valdivia S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV").

Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointuemagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October
30, 2007), and the following joint venture termsiigginterests set at 51%-49% in favor of Global@Gof the 3 directors, two (Mr. Krikorian
and Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice President inta@o) are appointed by Global Gold; Global Gaddhenits to finance at least one plant
and mining operation within 6 months as well aswually agreed exploration program to establistveroreserves, if that is successful, two
additional plants/operations will be financed; frtim profits of the joint venture, Global Gold wildy its partner an extra share based on the
following scale of 28 million euros for (a) 5 mdl ounces of gold produced in 5 years or (b) Siomlbunces of gold proven as reserves



according to Canadian National Instrument 43-10M ¢3-101") standards in 5 years. The 6 monthgailon was amended and extended by
the October 27, 2007 Pact to a period of 3 ye@ite definitions of proven and probable reserveslid3-101 reports differ from the
definitions in SEC Industry Guide 7. Also, the S&a&s not recognize the terms “measured resouncemdicated resources” or “inferred
resources” which are used in NI 43-101 reportse Thmpany has not financed any plants as of Deae&ih008.

On September 5, 2007, the Company entered intofidenmtial agreement which was made public on Cat@9, 2007, with members of the

Quijano family by which the Company has the optomarn a 51% interest in the Estrella del Sur &da&tinum project on Ipun Island and
another Gold-Platinum property on Chiloe Island.
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Key agreement terms for the Estrella del Sur anitb€lprojects required Global Gold to pay approxeha$160,000 to cover government
and license fees in exchange for an exclusive pptigil January 30, 2008 to review, explore, arrdf@int ventures on the properties. On or
before January 31, 2008, at Global Gold's soleoapgither or both of the properties shall be timmed to a new joint venture company (or
two separate companies on the same terms). Fopboterties and in consideration for forming thiafjoenture, Global Gold shall pay
1,500,000 euros (or the Chilean peso equivalentheriollowing schedule: 1. January 31, 2008, 280 68uros; 2. July 31, 2008, 250,000
euros; 3. January 30 2009, 500,000 euros; andy3112009, 500,000 euros. The Company receivegkéansion of the first payment date
March 31, 2008. On April 8, 2008, the board oediors of the Company approved an amendment exebMaech 31, 2008 to the above
option agreement for mining properties on Ipunndland Chiloe Island in Southern Chile. The keyntgeof the amendment transfer the
Chiloe and Ipun licenses to the existing Globald3éaldivia company and require the Company to @el®50,000 restricted shares of
Common Stock of the Company on or before May 1820bhe 250,000 restricted shares were issued oih &2008.

If either or both properties continue to productiomd reserves are proven by the prefeasibilitysmoging studies, Global Gold's partner will
be entitled to an extra share based on the follgwaale of 37,000,000 euros (15,000,000 for Chiloe 22,000,000 for Ipun) for 3,700,000
commercially reasonable recoverable ounces of glolsl platinum (calculated on a gold price equivakasis, using the monthly average of
the New York COMEX price for the month in which callations of proven reserves are made accordi@at@adian 43-101 standards) based
on the prefeasibility and scoping studies. Paymefitsome as the joint venture produces gold atipum as mutually agreed from no more
than 25% of Global Gold's profit from the joint vere. Part of the payments may be in Global Gaddisbn mutually agreeable terms. The
economic value of any other materials besides gofaatinum shall not be calculated as part of thismula and instead will be shared
according to joint venture terms. After the prefbiisy and scoping studies, each party shall casywn share of the costs.

On October 3, 2008, the Company entered into ageagent to sell all of the Company'’s interest irdisloe and Ipun island properties in
Chile, held by a Joint Venture with the Quijano fignto the Quijano family. The agreement was doded by October 15, 2008 and the
properties transferred to the purchaser as of Noeerh, 2008.

The consideration for the sale of the Chiloe anahlizland properties include the following to Glb@a@ld or its designee: (a) $200,000 USD,
fifty percent of which will be paid at the closiagd the other fifty percent to be paid within siggys; (b) certain second hand equipment and
parts used for mining which are currently on omumathe territory of the Global Gold Valdivia joiménture to be specified in the mutually
agreed transfer documents, including a Cater @& wheel loader, a Warner Swasey excavator, &aterpillar 290 kva generator; (c)
certain land rights, buildings and improvementsalurare currently on or around the territory of @lebal Gold Valdivia joint

venture, generally described as an approximatedytfectare property, known as Lote N°11, situéd@ureo, where Amparo and Pureo
mining properties are located, and approximateiyhtectares including two properties with their dings, situated in the area where the
mining property Guadalupe 61-120 is located, alt@be specified in the mutually agreed transteuinents; and (d) a first priority right of
payment from the profits of the Global Gold Valdiyoint venture company of $200,000 USD.

The Company rents office space in a commerciatimglat 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT witeigned a 5-year lease starting on
March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental cos#df800. On October 1, 2006, the Company expandeiffite space by assuming the leas
the adjacent office space. The assumed lease $sithien one year remaining, through September8®, 2t an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for &ioadtlyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeugal cost of $22,860 for that
period. The assumed lease was further extendedgh October 15, 2009 at which point the Compamated the additional space. Messrs.
Gallagher and Krikorian gave personal guarante¢iseo€ompany's performance for the first two yedrthe lease.

14. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corruptiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeand Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidwre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and i tinited States. Although the Minister took theipas that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiffiadials assured the Company to the contrary Amdenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compagceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prigpgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On NovembeR2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preredaito filing for international arbitration unddrd 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagviously undisclosed principal, Mr. Ayvaziafihe Company filed for arbitration
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under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("IC&D@cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently pending for 2009. On June 25, 2008,Rederal District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqered to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry@azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistrictNdw York. In addition and based on the US Armedilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitts¢ Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfer Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Segtletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhay of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&gust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdest they have suspended the ICSID arbitration penddnclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfieement in principle, and anticipate that thelfgettiement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The CompaasyIearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Gollen LLC, which was granted an illegal and compgticense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligatiasssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As bfugey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagiteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does rietiathe pending ICC arbitration involving simikubject matter.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgkclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respeatthese actions will not materially affect the C@nyp's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Unaudited)

a. On March 24, 2009, the Company signed a supphtract agreement with Industrial Minerals SA (“IMa Swiss Company. T

agreement is for IM to purchase all of the gold aifder concentrate produced at the Companies Takluk facility at 85% of LBMA les
certain treatment and refining charges. The Comapreparing its first two shipments of 60 toneesh of concentrate for delivery.
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries and Jurisdictions

State or Other Date of

Jurisdiction of Incorporation, Ownership

Incorporation Organization (Direct or
Subsidiary or Organization or Acquisition Indirect)
1.Global Oro LLC Delaware 2003 100%
2.Global Plata LLC Delaware 2003 100%
3.Global Gold Mining LLC Delaware 2003 100%
4.Global Gold Hankavan LLC Armenia 2003 100%
5.Mego-Gold LLC Armenia 200¢& 100%
6.Getik Mining Company LLC Armenia 200¢€ 100%
7.Global Gold Uranium LLC Delaware 2007 100%
8.Global Gold Armenia, LLC Delaware 2003 100%
9.Minera Global Chile Limitada Chile 2004 100%
10.Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia S.C.M Chile 2007 51%



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Van Z. Krikorian, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 18-Kf the year ended December 31, 2008, of Glol@ti@orporation;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe@ years presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedortss designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluations; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitgit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal year (the registramfourth quarter in the case of an annual repbaf has materially affected, or is reasonably yikelmateriall
affect, the registrant's internal control over fioal reporting; and

5) The registrant's other certifying officers artthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefrwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 19, 2010 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
[, Jan E. Dulman, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 18-Kf the year ended December 31, 2008, of Glol@ti@orporation;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe@ years presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedortss designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluations; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitgit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal year (the registramfourth quarter in the case of an annual repbaf has materially affected, or is reasonably yikelmateriall
affect, the registrant's internal control over fioal reporting; and

5) The registrant's other certifying officers artthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefrwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 19, 2010 /s/ Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

Each of the undersigned, in his capacity as aceafidf Global Gold Corporation (the "Companytigreby certifies, pursuant to Section 901
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135@); th

(1) the Annual Report on Form XJA of the Company for the year ended Decembe2BD8 fully complies with the requirements of Sew!
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act #4015 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: February 19, 2010 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 19, 2010 /s/ Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwl be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.



